
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS !" DECEMBER #$"#



Our business at a glance
Hansteen Holdings PLC is a European REIT that invests 
in predominantly industrial properties in continental 
Europe and the UK with high yields, low !nancing costs 
and opportunity for value improvement.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The Group has signi!cant resources available and a 
strong and experienced management infrastructure 
in place.  This together with a growing reputation 
for professionalism and performance with the 
major European banks will provide further excellent 
acquisition opportunities in the future.

Normalised 
Income Pro!t

£34.3m

Dividend 
per Share

4.5p

Property 
Portfolio

£1b
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2 HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC

2012
June
Full management 
platform established 
in UK, Germany and 
Benelux

December
Hansteen acquires the 
property assets from 
the Spencer Group of 
companies for £150 
million

Hansteen buys  
£78 million and sells 
£51 million

2011
March
Hansteen becomes a 
member of FTSE 250 
and EPRA Index

May
Hansteen announces 
the successful raising 
of £146.5 million, net of 
expenses

December
Hansteen’s property 
portfolio exceeds  
£1 billion

December
Hansteen acquires 
Saltley Business Park 
and Treforest Industrial 
Estate

October
The addition of 
two Non-Executive 
Directors and Finance 
Director strengthens 
the Board

2010
March
Hansteen acquires 
German industrial 
property portfolio for 
&330 million

April
Hansteen returns to the 
UK with acquisition of 
Kilmartin portfolio for 
£80.4 million

October
Hansteen moves from 
AIM to the O'cial List 
and becomes a REIT

2009
July
Share issue raises gross 
proceeds of £200.8 
million in successful 
placing and open o(er

August
Launch of the Hansteen 
UK Industrial Property 
Unit Trust with )ve 
institutional investors

July
Hansteen acquires 66 
properties in  
37 transactions 
totalling &300 million

2007
April
Hansteen completes a 
successful secondary 
placing for an 
additional £70 million

2008
July
Hansteen buys &36.2 
million and sells  
&31.8 million

Our Milestones
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HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC RESULTS !"#!

Financial Highlights

  Normalised Total Pro)t £34.3 million 
including £1.8 million insurance receipt 
(2011: £34.2 million  
including £5.3 million insurance receipt)

Diluted EPRA NAV per share 83p (2011: 82p)

Basic EPS 6.2p (2011: 1.3p) 
Diluted EPRA EPS 4.7p (2011: 4.9p) 
E(ect per share of insurance receipt 0.3p (2011: 0.9p)

 IFRS pre-tax pro)t £46.2million 
(2011: £8.9 million)

 Normalised Income Pro)t £30.8 million   
(2011: £25.7 million)

Annual dividends payable 4.5p  
(2011: 4.0p) $%&p
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 Property portfolio at 31 December 2012  
of 2.6 million sq m/28.1 million sq ft  
(2011: 2.4 million sq m/25.9 million sq ft)

Total property increased by 5% to £1 billion  
(2011: £961 million),  
annualised rent roll up 7% to £85 million  
(2011: £79 million)

Property valuations increased in both Europe and UK. 
Overall valuation increase of 2% (£18 million)

£78 million of properties acquired during 2012  
at an average yield of 12%.  
A further £60 million purchased in January 2013  
at an average yield of 10% 

£51 million of properties sold pro)tably during 2012  
in 38 transactions at an average yield of 5.5%

Average pro)t on sales of 4% to valuation  
from December 2011

Vacancy at beginning of year  
482,000 sq m/5.23 million sq ft.  
Like-for-like occupancy improvement in Germany, 
Benelux and the UK of 89,176 sq m/960,000 sq ft,  
4% of the total portfolio

*Operational highlights include 100% of HPUT

Operational Highlights*

+ '%()

#!) 
average yield

#") 
average yield

+ &)

+ *)

+ !)

&%&)

$)
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I have pleasure in presenting the results for the year 
ended 31 December 2012.

This has been a very busy and successful year with £77.6 
million of acquisitions and a further £60.0 million in 
January 2013, and continuing increases in rental income. 
As a result, the Group is reporting strong pro)ts, growth 
in the NAV and our property values, and the achievement 
of key management objectives.

Over the course of the year, Hansteen’s business model 
has worked successfully in each of our three core regions; 
Germany, Benelux (including France) and the UK. Like-
for-like occupancy has improved in all three regions and 
2013 has started with high enquiry levels.

Including the acquisition from The Industrial 
Trust, made in January 2013, we have now invested 
substantially all of the £150 million equity raised in 2011.

Results
Hansteen has delivered an increase in Normalised 
Pro)ts, despite challenging economic conditions and a 
stronger Euro against Sterling.

Normalised Income Pro)t was up 20% to £30.8 million 
(2011: £25.7 million). Normalised Total Pro)t increased 
to £34.3 million (2011: £34.2 million) and reported pro)t 
before tax increased to £46.2 million (2011: £8.9 million). 
Had it not been for the fall in the value of the Euro 
compared with the previous year, Normalised Total Pro)t 
would have been £2.5 million higher.

Basic earnings per share was 6.2p (2011: 1.3p) and diluted 
EPRA earnings per share was 4.7p (2011: 4.9p), of which, 
in both cases, 0.3p related to insurance receipts  
(2011: 0.9p).

The property revaluation at 31 December 2012 of the 
wholly owned portfolio showed an uplift of £19 million. 
This contributed to the improved NAV per share.  
The Group’s diluted EPRA NAV was 83p (2011: 82p).

Our NAV *uctuates with the Euro exchange rate, which 
since the year-end has moved signi)cantly in our favour. 
To demonstrate this, if the balance sheet at 31 December 
2012 had been prepared applying the current rate of 
exchange (£1:+1.16) the EPRA NAV would have been 86p.

Dividend
December 2012 marks the sixth successive year of rising 
Normalised Total Pro)ts since Hansteen *oated on 
AIM in November 2005. Throughout the downturn the 
Company has paid a covered dividend which has grown 
by 50% over the period. Few other companies in the 
sector have achieved this over that period.

The Board increased the interim dividend paid on 22 
November 2012 by 12.5% to 1.8p per share (November 
2011: 1.6p per share) and will pay a second interim 
dividend, increased by 12.5% to 2.7p per share (May 
2012: 2.4p). This dividend is payable on 22 May 2013 to 
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 26 
April 2013. A Property Income Distribution (PID) of 0.96p 
is included in this second interim dividend payment. 

Chairman’s Statement

“ Over the course of the year, Hansteen’s 
business model has worked successfully 
in each of our three core regions; 
Germany, Benelux (including France) 
and the UK. Like-for-like occupancy has 
improved in all three regions and 2013 
has started with high enquiry levels.”

James Hambro
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The total dividend relating to the year to 31 December 
2012 will be 4.5p per share (2011: 4.0p per share), an 
increase of 12.5%. Over the last three years the dividend 
has increased by more than 10% per annum as the Group 
has become more fully invested. 

The Board intends to maintain its prudently progressive 
dividend policy for the foreseeable future, re*ecting the 
ongoing pro)tability of the business, albeit at a more 
measured rate of growth. 

Property Acquisitions and Sales
In the last eighteen months Hansteen has been very 
active in acquiring properties that the Board believes 
represent good value and that will generate high returns. 
Between September 2011 and March 2013 Hansteen 
invested over £300 million in new properties. In every 
case the portfolios will have been both net asset and 
earnings enhancing.

Last year we reported the acquisition of the Spencer 
portfolio on 21 December 2011. This portfolio has 
now been under our management for a year and we 
are pleased with the outcome as we have increased 
occupancy from 68% to 79%. The combination of 
sales during the year and valuation uplifts generated 
un-geared capital returns of 3% from £146.3 million 
to £149.3 million on top of a rental return in excess of 
8% per annum. Like-for-like rent has improved by £0.2 
million or 2% over the course of the year.

In 2012, the Group made four acquisitions in Germany 
which totalled +74 million. The initial average rental 
yield on these was 13% and the vacancy level was 20%. 
The acquisitions took place in the second half of the year 
so we expect to see a full earnings contribution coming 
through in 2013. 

In the UK, we completed the purchase of West Horndon 
Industrial Estate in Essex for £18.2 million in September 
2012. Since the year-end we have acquired thirty two 
industrial estates for £60 million from The Industrial 
Trust with a rent roll of £6.1 million and a vacancy rate of 
16%.

2012 was also an active year for selling. In 38 individual 
sales a total of £51 million was realised at an average 
pro)t of 4% to the valuation from December 2011. Sales 
are a key part of Hansteen’s business model in order 
to realise pro)ts created by astute buying and active 
management, to recycle capital enabling new value-
rich acquisitions. The sales also provide evidence of the 
Group’s ability to realise the valuations. 

Two signi)cant pre-let developments have been 
commenced in Germany. One is an o'ce development 
on our site in Hanau, near Frankfurt, pre-let on a 10-year 
lease to global engineering and metals group Hereaus, 
and due for completion in late 2013. The other is a 
distribution warehouse development at our estate in 
Bremen, pre-let to LIT AG, a logistics business, also on a 
10-year lease.

The Group’s acquisitions were made at an average rental 
yield of 12% and the sales were made at an average yield 
of 5.5%. Asset management activities generated a like-
for-like void reduction of 89,000 sq m or 19%, through 
letting or selling. We are pleased to report an increase in 
net occupancy in all our regions and most noticeably in 
the Benelux, a net improvement of 14,934 sq m, or 12%, 
representing an impressive turn-around. The like-for-
like rent roll of the Group improved by £0.7 million per 
annum.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

£1 billion £85 million£961 million £79 million

2011 20112012

Property Portfolio & Value* Rent Roll*

2012

*Includes 100% of HPUT
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Property Portfolio
At the start of the year the Group‘s wholly owned 
property portfolio consisted of 2,052,897 sq m and 
262 hectares of development land with a value of £792 
million, a rent roll of £66 million and 19.4% vacant 
(398,600 sq m). At the year-end, the portfolio consisted 
of 2,274,002 sq m and 90 hectares of development land 
with a value of £843 million, a rent roll of £72 million 
and 17.7% vacant (402,650 sq m). The £60 million The 
Industrial Trust acquisition in January 2013 will add a 
further £6.1 million rent and 148,645 sq m.

In addition to its wholly owned properties, Hansteen has 
a one third stake in the Hansteen Property Unit Trust 
(HPUT). At the beginning of the year the HPUT portfolio 
was valued at £168.8 million with a rent roll of £13.2 
million per annum and 23.5% vacant (83,000 sq m). By 
the year-end, primarily due to sales, the HPUT was valued 
at £162.6 million with a rent roll of £12.9 million per 
annum and 18.9% vacant (64,000 sq m). The like-for-like 
occupancy improvement was 6% of the portfolio.

At 31 December our total properties under management, 
including the HPUT, exceeded £1 billion for the )rst time. 

This year the independent valuation showed an increase 
in the property values of £18 million. This uplift was 
generated mainly from the portfolios in Germany and 
the UK, although notably values in the Netherlands 
increased whereas the portfolio in Belgium showed a 
slight decline.

The Markets 
As you will see from the Joint Chief Executives’ Review all 
three regions in which Hansteen operates have positive 
occupier demand. Germany continues to be the strongest 
market but the UK and even the Benelux are showing 
increasing enquiries. We believe that the valuation 
growth Hansteen enjoyed in 2012 is as a result of astute 
purchasing and successful asset management initiatives 
rather than an improvement in values in the secondary 
industrial market. Indeed we expect valuations to 
continue to be broadly *at. However, we are seeing a 
return of international investors into industrial property. 
Whilst this investor interest is most marked in relation to 
the ‘big shed’ market, Hansteen believes that the investor 
appetite for smaller multi-let warehouses is beginning to 
improve particularly in the UK and Germany and this in 
turn should lead to improving values over time.

Group Funding
Acquisitions during 2012, together with those in January 
of this year, have largely utilised the proceeds of the 
Group’s £150 million fund raising that took place in May 
2011. Net debt to value at 31 December 2012 was 38.6% (31 
December 2011: 38.7%).

As the Group is now substantially invested, the 
additional acquisitions are using the Hansteen balance 
sheet more e'ciently and improving returns on capital. 
However, the Board maintains the objective of keeping 
a strong and secure )nancial base for the Group and 
continues to prioritise our balance sheet strength and 
liability management accordingly. In February 2012, 
the bank loan from FGH Bank, used to )nance the 
Group’s properties in the Netherlands, was extended. 
In exchange for a reduction in the facility from +109.1 
million to +94 million, the loan term, which was due to 
expire in June 2013, has been extended, by four years, 
to April 2017. The current all-in cost of the loan is 3.41% 
compared to 4.32% before the re-)nancing as, although 
the margin has increased, the underlying )xed rate has 
been moved to market levels.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Hansteen reports its results in Sterling but £286.6 
million of the total net assets, approximately 56%, 
are denominated in Euros. To mitigate the risk of a 
substantial fall in the Sterling value of the portfolio 
caused by a weakening of the Euro, the Group has hedged 
+200 million at a level of +1.24 to the pound Sterling, 
a one year extension on the hedge to June 2014 was 
reported with the interim results this year. In addition 
to the NAV hedge, the Board has decided to enter into 
hedging instruments to protect its Euro income from 
*uctuations in the exchange rate. We have taken the 
view that having su'cient income in Sterling to fund the 
dividend is a key priority.

Outlook
The Board continues to believe that Hansteen’s proven 
business model, which is to purchase carefully, )nance 
prudently and manage well, a large and diverse industrial 
portfolio, will produce secure, high and growing returns.

Industrial property is simple, *exible and economical, 
characteristics which have an evergreen appeal to 
occupiers but have not always been appreciated by 
investors. So it is heartening to see signs that the 
investment community is starting to recognise the 
fundamental strengths of industrial and logistics 
property as an investment medium. 

In December 2012 and January 2013 we added 40 
properties totalling £90 million to our portfolio, 
increasing its value to over £1 billion. This brings the 
total invested in new properties since our equity raising 
in May 2011 to over £300 million. 

We have been pleased with these acquisitions and they 
have so far performed ahead of our expectations. The 
average yield on purchase of these properties was 11% 
and these properties have shown increases in value and 
occupancy since we bought them.

Although over the last few years the Hansteen 
management team has successfully let or sold signi)cant 
amounts of the vacant property that Hansteen has 
purchased since *otation, there is still nearly 18% of the 
portfolio vacant with the potential to enhance earnings 
and our NAV as we improve occupancy.

The decision to build Hansteen’s direct marketing and 
asset management teams across the UK, Benelux and 
Germany is now providing the Group with the platform 
to better exploit our existing portfolio and gives us the 
opportunity to absorb any new acquisitions e'ciently. 

James Hambro
Chairman

8 March 2013

“ The Board continues to believe that Hansteen’s proven 
business model, which is to purchase carefully, !nance 
prudently and manage well, a large and diverse industrial 
portfolio, will produce secure, high and growing returns.”

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Joint Chief Executives’ Review

“ 2012 has been a successful 
year in relation to our goals 
and a number of asset 
management milestones 
have been achieved putting 
us in a strong position for 
the coming years.”

Morgan JonesIan Watson

Introduction
In our report for 2011 we set out our business aims as 
being to generate high and growing total returns to 
shareholders while maintaining a robust balance sheet. 
Our strategy is to buy a property at a low point (in terms 
of occupancy, value and management), intensively 
manage it to improve income and value and, when the 
time is right, realise the added value.

2012 has been a successful year in relation to these goals 
and a number of asset management milestones have 
been achieved putting us in a strong position for the 
coming years.

Key Performance Indicators
Normalised Total Pro)ts and Normalised Income Pro)ts 
both described in more detail below, re*ected excellent 
results. Normalised Total Pro)ts is £34.3 million (2011: 
£34.2 million), and Normalised Income Pro)ts is £30.8 
million (2011: £25.7 million). 

The diluted EPRA NAV has shown an increase in 2012 to 
83p per share (2011: 82p).

Both earnings and valuations were adversely a(ected by 
the fall in the value of the Euro. Earnings are prepared 
using the average currency exchange rate for the year 

under review. The Sterling/Euro exchange rate applied 
in our 2012 results was 7% lower than that in 2011. 
The currency translation e(ect created a £2.5 million 
reduction in Normalised Total Pro)t compared with 
the previous year. The balance sheet is prepared using 
the currency exchange rate at the year-end. The Euro 
at the end of 2012 was 3% lower than at the end of 2011. 
Interestingly, that adverse exchange rate movement has 
reversed since the year-end which, if maintained for the 
year, will have a bene)cial e(ect on both earnings and 
the NAV.

In 2012, like-for-like net occupancy, (measured by taking 
the vacant area at the year-end compared to the start of 
the year and adding vacancies acquired), improved by 
89,176 sq m. This represents approximately 3.7% of the 
total portfolio or 18.5% of vacancies at the start of the 
year. This improvement took place across each of our 
three regions: 59,000 sq m in the UK; 15,000 sq m in 
Germany; and 15,000 sq m in Benelux. For some time we 
have been reporting falling occupation in Benelux and 
it is now very pleasing to report that this trend has been 
reversed. 

During the course of the year, we acquired )ve property 
portfolios at a value of £77.6 million and an average 
yield of 12% and sold 38 properties for £51 million at an 
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average yield of 5.5%, showing a pro)t over valuation of 
£2 million. Two developments in our existing portfolio 
were commenced during the year and will complete in 
2013. The planned cost of each of the developments is +9 
million and both properties should see enhanced returns 
and valuations once completed.

Asset Management 
We are particularly pleased that by the end of 2012, 
our in-house marketing and asset management teams 
were in place across our three regions. We believe that 
the improvements in occupation in such a challenging 
economic environment are largely down to our team 
structure and the people that we employ.

Our asset managers are primarily focused on tenant 
relationships and on marketing the vacant units 
either for sale or to rent. They are also involved in the 
management of the properties in their region, although 
day-to-day implementation of the management is 
undertaken by local property managers who are 
contracted on a third party basis.

In Germany, we now have teams in Berlin, Dusseldorf, 
Frankfurt and Stuttgart covering asset management, 
marketing, accounting, legal and technical services. In 
the course of the year we completed 364 new leases and 
+31.5 million of sales. We will continue to strengthen the 
local accounting team in Germany to provide support 
to our asset managers there. In total we now have 17 
employees in Germany.

In the Benelux, we have asset management teams in 
Amsterdam and Brussels. Again, the investment in these 
in-house teams has produced positive results, with a 
large number of successful lettings and sales concluded, 
particularly in the second half of 2012. There is little 
evidence of any improvement in the Benelux markets, 
despite which our teams have achieved better results 
than might have been expected by taking a very pro-
active approach.

In the UK, our team is spread across the country, with 
o'ces in Glasgow, Leeds, Liverpool, Birmingham, 
Cardi( and London and it has also outperformed our 
expectations in a di'cult market.

With this platform in place across all our regions, we are 
now ideally positioned to absorb additional properties 
without a corresponding proportionate increase in costs. 
We have taken time and care to establish and develop the 

appropriate platform in each country and we believe that 
this is one of the factors which will put us ahead of our 
competition. 

In addition to the established asset management teams, 
Hansteen has a group of senior managers and )nancial 
executives that have worked together for many years and 
are taking signi)cantly more managerial and )nancial 
responsibilities for their regions. We increasingly view 
Germany, Benelux and the UK as distinct businesses 
which we hope will help us take advantage of di(erent 
cyclical peaks and troughs. This approach also enables 
us to combine the agility and entrepreneurial culture of 
a smaller business with the economies of scale of a larger 
company.

In May 2011, Hansteen raised £150 million of equity to 
take advantage of distressed property sales which we 
believed could be acquired at attractive pricing. Since 
that time we have acquired £305 million of properties 
and we regard each of these purchases as enhancing to 
both income and value. The net cash utilisation from 
acquisitions, developments and sales has enabled us to 
deploy the cash more e'ciently without stretching the 
gearing.

The Markets
During 2012, the occupational markets in Germany have 
continued to be strong and the UK has shown modest 
signs of improvement. We feel that in Germany, the 
nature and extent of enquiries is broadening to move 
beyond mainly contract led enquiries and include 
companies making substantial longer term investment-
led property decisions. We also believe that in the UK, 
enquiry levels themselves are improving albeit not with 
the strength we are experiencing in Germany. This is not 
yet the case in the Benelux but we believe that our asset 
management skills enable us to outperform the market 
and this in itself may bring further asset management 
opportunities to the Group.

As a generality, the investment market remains weak 
and it is therefore a bene)t that a large part of the return 
from secondary industrial property is the rental income. 
Nevertheless, in 2012 we undertook 38 sales totalling 
£51 million, compared to 33 transactions totalling £33 
million in the previous year. On the whole these sales 
were to particular and local buyers, often acquired for 
their own occupation. However, there are some early 
signs of increased liquidity and improved sentiment 

JOINT CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ REVIEW
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towards industrial property in both Germany and the 
UK. This improving sentiment stems partly from the 
strong growth in sales being experienced by the internet 
retailers who store, sell and distribute their goods from 
warehouses rather than shops and partly from the high 
yield enjoyed by industrial properties. In the UK, there 
appears to be a very small improvement in the amount of 
new bank lending on secondary property.  

!"#! Results
We set out below a table showing Normalised Income 
Pro)t, generated mainly from rental income and fee 
income, Normalised Total Pro)t which includes pro)ts 
from the sale of properties and one-o( gains and 
losses, dividends and NAV measures. These )gures 
are reconciled to the IFRS measures in note 6 to the 
accounts.

 2012 2011 2010
 £’000s £’000s £’000s

Rental income 66,780 61,715 52,583

Cost of sales (11,506) (11,895) (10,927)

Management fees 1,719 1,436 1,161

Share of associates 2,200 955 (132)

Overheads (14,604) (11,483) (9,564)

Net interest payable (13,747) (14,981) (12,882)

Normalised Income Pro)t 30,842 25,747 20,239

Pro)t on sales of investment and trading properties 1,621 3,089 6,231

Other operating income 1,799 5,337 -

Normalised Total Pro)t 34,262 34,173 26,470

   

Dividends payable relating to the year 26,831 25,553 15,878

The table below sets out total property assets, including 100% of the HPUT,  
net assets of the Group and EPRA NAV per share.

 2012 2011 2010
 £’000s £’000s £’000s

Property assets (including HPUT’s) 1,005,688 960,830 828,676

Net assets of the Group 516,357 509,404 380,223

EPRA NAV (2010 restated) 83p 82p 84p

Dividends payable per share 4.5p 4.0p 3.5p

JOINT CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ REVIEW
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JOINT CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ REVIEW

Property Portfolio !"#!
At 31 December 2012, Hansteen’s total property portfolio, both owned and under management, including the properties 
owned by the HPUT, comprised 2.6 million sq m with 17.9% vacant and had a rent roll of £84.7 million per annum and 
a value of £1.0 billion.  The yield on the portfolio is 8.4% generated from 282 estates with 2,800 tenants in )ve di(erent 
countries.  The analysis of the portfolio is set out below:

HANSTEEN PROPERTY PORTFOLIO+
Summary as at 31 December 2012

Number of 
properties

Built Area 
 

sq m

Vacant  
Area 

%

 
Euros 
&m

 
Sterling 

,m

 
Euros 
&m

 
Sterling 

,m

Yield 
 

%

Germany 96 1,503,634 13.86% 60.52 49.35 674.67 550.17 8.97%

UK 85 315,901 26.01% 12.61 10.29 170.10 138.71 7.24%

Netherlands 
Belgium & France 46 454,467 24.65% 14.89 12.14 189.12 154.22 7.87%

Total wholly owned 227 2,274,002 17.71% 88.02 71.78 1,033.89 843.10 8.15%

HPUT* 55 338,834 18.92% 15.83 12.90 199.39 162.60 7.94%

Total under 
management 282 2,612,836 17.86% 103.85 84.68 1,233.28 1,005.70 8.42%

Passing Rent Value

* HPUT !gures represent 100%. Hansteen has an investment of 33% in HPUT.

The wholly owned portfolio grew from £792 million to 
£843 million over the course of the year. The yield on the 
portfolio increased from 8.35% to 8.5% and there was an 
uplift of £19 million in the property valuation. We set out 
below the key themes from each of our regions.

GERMANY
Germany, which accounts for approximately 55% of 
our portfolio, delivered a solid performance in 2012, 
with the key indicators of occupancy, income and 
value all showing positive results. The vacancy at the 
beginning of the year was 12.9% (169,000 sq m). A 
number of short term lettings over Christmas 2011 
meant that occupancy reduced in the )rst half of the 
year as these tenants vacated. Despite this, like-for-like 

 
GERMANY
+''!,$*m
)# properties



14 HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC

occupancy performance, over the year, was strong with 
net occupancy improving by 15,288 sq m or 9% of the 
vacancy. The portfolio ended the year with 208,461 sq m  
vacant, representing 13.9% of the total *oor area, the 
increase being due to new purchases adding 54,584 sq m 
of vacant property.

The rent roll at the end of the year was +60.5 million 
compared to +53.9 million at the beginning. The like-for-
like rent roll was essentially static, however, there were 
a number of delayed lease starts and rent free periods 
for new lease contracts struck at the end of the year 
which meant that contracted rent for the portfolio on 
31 December 2012 was +63.2 million. Our like-for-like 
statistics are calculated using passing rents and not the 
higher contracted rents.

The value of the portfolio increased by +19.3 million, or 
3.2%, in addition to the pro)t of +1.8 million crystallised 
from sales. Purchases during the year amounted to +74.3 
million and the closing valuation for the year was +674.7 
million. In 2012, +31.5 million of pro)table sales were 
completed representing 5.3% of the German portfolio. 
Key highlights are outlined below.

Sales of property during the year to German investors at 
Heilbronn for +13.4 million, Leinfelden for +7.9 million, 
and O(enburg for +3.7 million, Freising for +2.5 million 
and Neckarsulm for +1 million generated aggregate 
pro)ts in excess of +1 million. 

We sold the industrial estate in Rodgau, part of the EIP 
portfolio purchased in December 2012, to Eiltrans, an 
existing tenant on the estate, for +3.1 million, a pro)t 
over the purchase cost.

This sales activity has continued into early 2013 with 
the completion of sales at Weiterstadt, Ascha(enburg 
and Neckarsulm for aggregate proceeds of +13.1 million 
and a pro)t of approximately +0.4 million over the 31 
December 2012 valuation. 

During the year we identi)ed several new purchase 
opportunities which were in line with our strategy to 
buy at signi)cantly below replacement cost and have 
potential for adding value. The main acquisitions are 
described below.

A portfolio of six properties comprising 127,000 sq m of 
good quality logistics space in strong regional locations 
was acquired from Dexus Fund Management Group 
for +26 million and was completed in June. Based on 

a passing rent of +3.58 million, the portfolio provides 
an initial yield of 13.77%. The acquisition o(ered an 
excellent opportunity to add value through re-gearing 
the very short lease lengths of the existing tenants 
and re-letting the vacant space; both initiatives are 
progressing in line with the business plan.

In September, three properties, in Ühingen, Henstedt-
Ülzburg and Grevenbroich, were acquired from 
Cambridge Place Investments as part of the former EB8 
portfolio, for +10.21 million. The properties, totalling 
25,188 sq m, provide a total annual rent of +1.17 million 
and there are strong lease re-gear opportunities.

Early in December, the Zeppelin Park estate in West 
Berlin was acquired for +11.3 million. The Park provides 
40,134 sq m of logistics and light industrial space in 
19 buildings, let to 26 tenants, with a vacancy rate of 
approximately 17%. The passing rent was +1.7 million 
and the target rent when fully occupied will be around 
+2.0 million per annum. This is our )rst purchase, 
from a special servicer, of a property that was part of a 
Commercial Mortgage Backed Security issue. It was a 
complex and time consuming transaction but one which 
we expect to perform well.

At the end of December we acquired seven, multi-
let, industrial estates from the European Industrial 
Partnership fund for +24.5 million, re*ecting an initial 
yield of 10.6% and a reversion to over 14% when fully let. 
The portfolio provides 84,224 sq m and, at purchase, was 
41% vacant.  

Tenant demand and enquiry levels remained strong 
throughout 2012 in most areas of Germany and retention 
rates of existing tenants were up on the prior year. 
Signi)cant letting transactions completed in the year are 
described below.

At our Bremen estate we agreed a pre-let of a new 20,000 
sq m logistics building with logistics operator, LIT AG, 
who signed a ten year lease for a building which is now in 
the process of being constructed on the site of buildings 
which were destroyed by )re in October 2009. The initial 
rent will be approximately +1.0 million per annum and 
re*ects a new headline rate for the Bremen warehousing 
market. Practical completion is expected in May 2013.

At our large site in Hanau, not far from Frankfurt, we 
have agreed terms with Hereaus, a global engineering 
and specialist metals business and one of the largest 
occupiers in Hanau, to pre-let the front o'ce building on 

JOINT CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ REVIEW
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a 10-year lease at a rent of +0.9 million per annum. The 
o'ce is currently derelict but will be entirely refurbished 
to Grade A o'ce standard prior to Hereaus taking 
possession towards the end of 2013. The development 
will show a yield of around 10% per annum on cost.

In Gottmadingen, we agreed a new part lease and part 
renewal, on over 35,000 sq m of production and storage 
space, with Constellium, part of the Alcan group, the 
largest tenant within the estate, at an annual rent of 
+1.56 million, on an initial 12 year term. This includes 
3,000 sq m of o'ce area and will see the development 
of a new 1,500 sq m warehouse hall. Completion of the 
development is due in summer 2013.

At our Friedberg property, Fresenius HemoCare GmbH, 
a global healthcare and technology company, agreed 
to lease 1,231 sq m of warehouse and 2,254 sq m of 
o'ce space at +260,748 per annum, on a ten year term 
with a seven year break option, subject to signi)cant 
early termination penalties. The lease commenced in 
December 2012 following a refurbishment and )t out of 
the property. 

UK
In terms of asset value, the UK accounted for 30% of our 
property investments at 31 December 2012. The overall 
picture has been one of steady improvement in rent, 
occupancy and value. Including the HPUT properties, on 
a like-for-like basis, occupancy has improved by 58,954  
sq m or 9% of the portfolio, and like-for-like rental 
income has increased by £0.38 million per annum. The 
net e(ect of acquisitions and sales was £0.63 million 
per annum and the closing rent was £23.2 million per 
annum.

The like-for-like movement in the portfolio value has 
been a gain of £2.2 million, or 0.7% of the portfolio, in 
addition to a pro)t from sales of £0.5 million.

At 31 December 2012, the wholly owned UK portfolio had 
an annual rent roll of £10.3 million and a value of £138.7 
million, representing a yield on the built portfolio of 8% 
with a vacancy rate of 26.0% by *oor area, a reduction 
from the 38.3% vacancy rate at December 2011. There are 
also six development sites totalling 86 hectares valued at 
£10.8 million.

During 2012, we completed £13.4 million of sales from 
our directly owned portfolio and £7.7 million of sales 
from the HPUT portfolio.

Having purchased £270 million of property in 2010 and 
2011, all directly or indirectly from banks, we continued 
in 2012 with the purchase of West Horndon Industrial 
Park for £18.2 million from the administrators of the 
Easter Group. The asset comprises 58,195 sq m on 10.4 
hectares with a passing rent of £1.5 million per annum, 
re*ecting an initial yield of 8%. In the medium term the 
property has strong prospects for alternative higher value 
use which is now being progressed through the local 
planning process.

UNITED 
KINGDOM
+$&(,*$m
(' properties

JOINT CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ REVIEW
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The HPUT had another active year, having closed 2011 
with the part acquisition of the Spencer group and 
reaching full investment.  During the year nine sales 
were completed for £7.7 million, £0.4 million above 
valuation. Highlights included the pro)table sale of a 
5,742 sq m vacant unit at Saltley Business Park which 
was sold to an owner occupier for £1.7 million, and the 
remaining )ve vacant units at Propeller Park which were 
all pro)tably sold for a combined price of £1.7 million.

A powerful illustration of the bene)ts of our regional 
in-house marketing approach in the UK is the progress 
made at Venture Point, Ellesmere Port, part of the 
Spencer acquisition. This 22 unit property close to 
Cheshire Oaks Designer Outlet Village had 15 vacant 
units when we acquired it in December 2011. During 2012 
our North West team let 13 of the units leaving only two 
vacant units at December 2012. As a result, the rent roll 
grew from £50,664 pa to £186,302 pa and the value over 
the year increased by 18%.

At the end of 2012, the HPUT had property assets of 
£162.6 million, re*ecting a NAV of £1.083 per unit (£1 
par), having produced a distribution of 6.2%. The total 
return of 5.8% in the year is higher than the IPD all 
industrial return of 3.7%, and is higher than each of the 
individual industrial specialist funds in the IPD index.

Hansteen exchanged contracts to acquire £60 million of 
assets from The Industrial Trust on 21 December 2012. 
The portfolio comprises 32 properties across England, 
Wales and Scotland. Completion on 31 of the assets took 
place on 31 January 2013 for £57.4 million and completion 
of the )nal asset in Salford is expected shortly.

The portfolio comprises 148,645 sq m with a vacancy rate 
of 16% by *oor area with a rent of £6.1 million per annum 
re*ecting an initial yield 10.14%.

Two new )ve year facilities with Royal Bank of Scotland 
totalling £40 million were utilised against the portfolio 
acquisition and the current borrowing cost is 4.44% per 
annum.

2013 should be a year of opportunity for Hansteen in 
the UK. Having assembled a portfolio of good quality, 
high yielding properties and put in place a UK wide 
team of asset managers, we are well-placed to generate 
returns from existing properties as well as sourcing new 
opportunities.  Our )ve regional o'ces are now taking 
the central role in the marketing of the void space and 
their close proximity to the assets is already producing 
results. 

The commercial environment remains challenging 
although early signs show a higher level of property 
enquiries throughout the UK, which we believe we will be 
able to convert into new leases.

 

BENELUX (including FRANCE)
At 31 December 2012, Benelux accounted for 
approximately 15% of our portfolio.

Overall we had a successful year with an improvement in 
occupancy in all three countries.

In the Netherlands, like-for-like net occupancy has 
improved by 9,489 sq m, in Belgium by 2,095 sq m, 
and in France by 3,350 sq m. This is an excellent 
result, particularly in the Netherlands where we have 
successfully reversed the negative trend experienced in 
2011, in a very di'cult market.

BENELUX 
& FRANCE
+$'",%%m
"# properties
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The overall valuation has increased by +0.4 million, 0.2% 
of the portfolio, compared to a drop of +31.7 million, or 
14% of the portfolio in 2011. The annual rent roll has also 
increased by 4% to +14.9 million.

As reported last year, we made a signi)cant investment 
in the Benelux, in terms of building a strong in-
house management team which has implemented an 
aggressive direct marketing campaign. We now have four 
full-time sta( based in Amsterdam and one in Belgium, 
supplemented by a UK based Director and two people 
from our partners, Ormix.

The direct marketing campaign has started to yield 
tangible results with over 70,000 sq m of new lettings 
or sales completed across the Benelux during 2012. 
The majority of the new deals have been generated and 
completed by our own team without any involvement of 
third party agents.

Notable transactions over the period include sales of 
10,800 sq m of vacant space at Ede, Netherlands and 
5,150 sq m in Westerlo, Belgium, together with lettings 
of 9,473 sq m at Tiel to Fiege Logistics BV, 5,725 sq m at 
Deventer to HEK Holdings BV and 5,184 sq m at Nijmegen 
to Duynie Holdings BV.

In France, we leased the last remaining 3,350 sq m 
of vacant space at Lyon, and now have three fully let 
properties and a total portfolio size of 61,730 sq m.

Further progress has already been achieved in 2013, 
particularly in Belgium, with a number of new deals 
completed, including the sale of a vacant 1,386 sq m 
o'ce building in Brussels, a letting of 1,500 sq m 
warehouse in Anderlecht and a letting of 1,195 sq m of 
o'ces at Louvain Le Neuve. These transactions represent 
approximately 20% of the current Belgium vacancy.

Market conditions in Benelux remain extremely di'cult, 
but we hope to continue to improve occupancy with our 
direct marketing initiatives during 2013. 

Outlook
We believe that the Group is well placed for continued 
growth. We have a high yielding portfolio which is spread 
over 2,800 tenants with no single tenant accounting 
for more than 2% of the total. Our recent opportunistic 
purchases have enabled us to increase that rental yield 
and grow values.

We have a strong balance sheet and remain committed to 
)nancing on a prudent basis.

The )rst seven years of Hansteen has been one of a 
period of net acquiring and for much of the period 
economic conditions have been di'cult. There are 
tentative signs in the UK and Germany that the occupier 
market has stabilised. Other positive signals include 
an increased number of banks, at this point mainly in 
the UK, that are prepared to lend on new or secondary 
industrial properties. This funding movement aligned 
with the increased sales which we have achieved this 
year, indicates a slight turn in investment sentiment. 
Overall the market in 2013 will be challenging but we are 
optimistic that we can continue to generate high returns 
from our assets and leverage our management team to 
good e(ect.

Ian Watson and Morgan Jones 
Joint Chief Executives

8 March 2013

JOINT CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ REVIEW
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Net Asset Value 
Net assets attributable to the equity shareholders at 
31 December 2012 were £515.4 million (2011: £508.6 
million). The increase in the year arises principally 
from £39.4 million pro)t for the year less dividends 
paid of £26.8 million o(set by adverse foreign currency 
movements on overseas net assets of £6.2 million. 

There were 638.8 million shares in issue at 31 December 
2012 (2011: 638.8 million) with a further 1 million shares 
under option at exercise prices below the market price 
at that time giving 639.8 million shares for dilutive 
measures (2011: 639.7 million). NAV per share at 31 
December 2012 was 81p (2011:80p) and diluted EPRA 
NAV per share at 31 December 2012 was 83p (2011: 82p).

Gearing
As the pressure to de-gear continues in the banking 
industry, the property sector’s ability to source reasonably 
priced )nance is reduced. Nevertheless, we have 
negotiated both new and extended facilities during 2012.

At the beginning of the year the Group secured a +90.1 
million )ve year extension to its facility with FGH Bank 
in the Netherlands. During the year the Group obtained 
a new +2.8 million facility from DG Hyp in Germany 
secured against its German assets and before the end of 
the year the Group secured new facilities of £39.6 million 
in the UK. The Group had total bank facilities of £481.2 

million with £39.6 million undrawn at 31 December 2012. 
Borrowings are in the same currency as the assets against 
which they are secured. 

Net debt increased from £306.9 million at 31 December 
2011 to £325.0 million at 31 December 2012. The increase 
of £18.1 million resulted primarily from the investment 
of cash into investment properties. Cash in*ows from 
operating activities were £39.4 million which more than 
covered the dividend payments of £26.8 million leaving 
a surplus of £12.6 million. This surplus, together with 
the £10.2 million reduction in the Sterling equivalent of 
the liability caused by exchange rate movements, o(set 
net cash out*ows of £40.4 million to )nance investment 
property acquisitions net of sales. 

We continue to maintain a prudent level of gearing 
with net debt to value remaining unchanged from the 
previous year-end at 39%.

Net debt to shareholders equity at 31 December 2012 at 
63% was marginally up on the 60% at 31 December 2011.

Cash resources at the year-end amount to £118.9 million 
and there were undrawn committed facilities of £39.6 
million. These cash resources and undrawn facilities 
were utilised in part to )nance the completion monies 
due in January 2013 for the EIP portfolio purchased in 
December 2012 and the purchase of The Industrial Trust 
properties acquired in January 2013, which required 
approximately £80 million. 

Finance Review

Richard Lowes

“ Hansteen begins 2013, as it did the 
previous year, with a strong balance 
sheet and secure !nancing at relatively 
low interest rates, the majority of 
which is swapped or capped at rates 
signi!cantly below the running yield  
on our property portfolio.”
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Of the Group’s £442 million bank borrowings, at 31 
December 2012, 62% was swapped at an average rate 
of 2.1% with a further 22% capped at an average of 
4.6% giving an all in average rate of 3.1%. The weighted 
average debt maturity at 31 December 2012 was 2.7 years 
and the weighted average maturity of the hedging was 1.7 
years.

The covenants on all of the Group’s bank loans currently 
have signi)cant headroom. The average all-in interest 
rate for the Group at 31 December 2012 was 3.2%. 
Analysis of the Group’s bank loan facilities is set out 
below.

Bank loan facilities

Lender Facility Amount Unexpired All-in Loan Interest 
  undrawn term interest to value cover 
 millions millions years rate  covenant covenant

Lloyds Banking Group +150.0 - 1.8 3.09% 75% 1.75:1

FGH +90.1 - 4.3 3.41% 80% 1.65:1

UniCredit +235.8 - 2.1 3.00% 95% 1.55:1

BNP Paribas Fortis +13.6 - 9.8 1.98% - -

Bel)us +0.9 - 8.8 1.09% - -

ING +1.0 - 9.2 1.18% - -

DG Hyp +2.8 - 4.5 3.33% 70% 1.25:1

Total Euro facilities +494.2 -    

Total Euro facilities in GBP £403.0 -    

      

Lloyds Banking Group £38.6 - 3.0 4.37% 70% 1.60:1

Royal Bank of Scotland £20.8 £20.8 5.1 4.27% 60% 2.00:1

Royal Bank of Scotland £18.8 £18.8 5.1 4.27% 60% 2.00:1

Total facilities £481.2 £39.6    

In addition to these bank loan facilities, the Group has 
a +3.9 million )nance lease in place to fund a property 
in Belgium. As at 31 December 2012, the lease has an 
unexpired term of 11 years and an interest rate implicit in 
the lease of 4.8%. 

On 21 December 2012, two new )ve-year facilities were 
completed with Royal Bank of Scotland for £20.8 million 
and £18.8 million. The facilities are secured on the West 
Horndon property acquired during 2012 and the £60 
million of assets acquired from The Industrial Trust in 
January 2013. The interest rate under the facilities is 
Libor plus 3.75%, the loan to value covenant is 60% and 

the interest cover covenant is 2:1. In January 2013, an 
initial drawdown of £38.1 million was made under the 
facilities.

The Group holds 33.3% of the equity in the HPUT which 
had £98.2 million net assets at 31 December 2012 and a 
£73 million loan facility from Royal Bank of Scotland, 
which was fully drawn at the year-end. The facility is 
secured against £159.9 million of HPUT’s £162.6 million 
investment property portfolio. The funds drawn under 
the facility bear interest at an all-in rate of 3.3%. The loan 
to value covenant is 60% and the interest cover covenant 
is 2:1.

FINANCE REVIEW
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Despite Hansteen’s success in raising new bank debt in a 
di'cult market, throughout 2012, the Board continued 
to investigate alternative sources of debt )nance to 
protect against the possibility that bank debt will become 
increasingly di'cult or expensive to secure.

Currency
Hansteen reports its results in Sterling although, at 
present, approximately 56% (£286.6 million or +351.5 
million) of its net assets are denominated in Euros. The 
Group’s investments in Europe are partly matched with 
Euro borrowings and to that extent there is a natural 
currency hedge. 

As reported in our Interim Statement in August 2012, the 
Board continues to review its currency hedging policy, 
particularly in the light of the uncertainty concerning the 
Euro. The current policy can be summarised as:

•  Hedging instruments are used to cover a substantial 
proportion of Group Euro net assets and estimated 
net Euro income for the short-term.

•  Hedges are implemented at levels which the Board 
believe are cost e(ective.

•  Hedging is employed as an insurance policy 
against the impact of a signi)cant fall in the value 
of the Euro against Sterling rather than a means to 
speculate for pro)t.

With the above policy in mind, as protection of net 
assets, the Group extended its existing +200 million 
currency options representing 57% of the current Euro 
denominated net assets. These hedges, which were due 
to expire on 30 June 2013, were extended to 30 June 2014 
at no additional cost but the average exchange rate on 
the options increased from +1.1997 to +1.2372. 

As cover for Euro income the Group has hedged net Euro 
income amounting to +70 million in aggregate by taking 
out four options expiring on 28 June 2013, 31 December 
2013, 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2014. Each option is 
to put +17.5 million and call for GBP at an exchange rate 
of +1.3/£1. The aggregate premiums for these options 
were £1.6 million.

Summary
Hansteen begins 2013, as it did the previous year, with a 
strong balance sheet and secure )nancing at relatively 
low interest rates, the majority of which is swapped or 
capped at rates signi)cantly below the running yield on 
our property portfolio. Although there is no immediate 
pressure on our debt facilities, the focus for the current 
year will be to position ourselves to be able to renew, 
replace or extend, where appropriate, existing debt 
facilities in advance of their maturity dates.

Richard Lowes
Finance Director

8 March 2013

FINANCE REVIEW
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2012

  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
 Note £’000 £’000

Revenue 5 77,257 63,792

Cost of sales 5 (19,704) (12,704)

Gross pro-t 5 57,553 51,088

Other operating income  1,799 5,337

Administrative expenses  (14,604) (12,110)

Share of results of associates 18 1,907 2,741

Operating pro-t before gains on investment properties and sale of subsidiaries  46,655 47,056

Pro)t on sale of investment properties  855 2,722

Pro)t on sale of subsidiary  56 -

Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties  18,940 (19,324)

Operating pro-t  66,506 30,454

Impairment of available for sale investment  - (2,901)

Change in fair value of foreign currency derivatives 21 (4,752) 429

Change in fair value of interest rate derivatives 21 (2,125) (5,156)

Finance income 10 1,495 1,391

Finance costs 10 (15,242) (16,372)

Foreign exchange gains 10 314 1,044

Pro-t before tax  46,196 8,889

Tax 11 (6,610) (1,169)

Pro,t for the year 8 39,586 7,720

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent  39,408 7,735

Non-controlling interests  178 (15)

  39,586 7,720

Earnings per share

Basic 13 6.2p 1.3p

Diluted 13 6.2p 1.3p

All results derive from continuing operations.
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Consolidated Statement  
of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2012

  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Pro)t for the year after tax  39,586 7,720

Other comprehensive income/(expense):

Exchange di(erences on translating foreign operations  (6,062) (6,714)

Exchange di(erences recycled to income statement on disposal of subsidiary  (171) -

Movement in fair value of available for sale investment  - (1,219)

Movement in fair value of available for sale investment  
recycled to income statement on impairment  - 2,615

Total other comprehensive expense for the year, net of income tax  (6,233) (5,318)

Total comprehensive income for the year  33,353 2,402

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent  33,195 2,436

Non-controlling interest  158 (34)

  33,353 2,402



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2012  25

Balance Sheets
as at 31 December 2012  Group Group Company Company 

  2012 2011 2012 2011 
 Note £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 14 1,959 2,188 - -
Property, plant and equipment 15 208 226 - -
Investment property 16 821,372 762,143 - -
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 17 - - 322,446 242,958
Investment in associates 18 32,741 32,852 - -
Other investments 19 - - - -
Deferred tax asset 20 2,228 2,737 1,104 1,326
Derivative )nancial instruments 21 5,027 8,221 5,022 8,185
  863,535 808,367 328,572 252,469
Current assets
Investment properties held for sale 16 10,948 12,452 - -
Trading properties 22 10,765 17,476 - -
Trade and other receivables 23 21,107 21,920 113,358 124,608
Derivative )nancial instruments 21 176 - 176 -
Cash and cash equivalents 24 118,916 162,503 95,660 133,618
   161,912 214,351 209,194 258,226
Total assets  1,025,447 1,022,718 537,766 510,695
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 (41,704) (19,826) (122,182) (69,756)
Current tax liabilities  (2,284) (5,733) - -
Borrowings 26 (4,194) (3,287) - -
Obligations under )nance leases 27 (165) (322) - -
  (48,347) (29,168) (122,182) (69,756)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 26 (436,590) (462,733) - -
Obligations under )nance leases 27 (2,982) (3,070) - -
Derivative )nancial instruments 21 (10,098) (9,921) (1,902) (2,109)
Deferred tax liabilities 20 (11,073) (8,422) - -
   (460,743) (484,146) (1,902) (2,109)
Total liabilities  (509,090) (513,314) (124,084) (71,865)
Net assets  516,357 509,404 413,682 438,830
Equity
Share capital 28 63,883 63,883 63,883 63,883
Share premium  112,731 112,731 112,731 112,731
Translation reserves  23,905 30,118 - -
Retained earnings  314,862 301,854 237,068 262,216
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent  515,381 508,586 413,682 438,830
Non-controlling interest  976 818 - -
Total equity  516,357 509,404 413,682 438,830

The )nancial statements of Hansteen Holdings PLC, registered number 05605371, were approved by the Board of 
Directors and authorised for issue on 8 March 2013. Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ian Watson and Morgan Jones 
Joint Chief Executives
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Statements of Changes 
in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Group       Non- 
 Share Share Translation Merger Retained  controlling  
 capital premium reserves reserve earnings Total interest Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 January 2011 45,365 112,731 36,813 - 184,462 379,371 852 380,223

Ordinary shares issued  
at a premium 18,518 - - 131,482 - 150,000 - 150,000

Transfer to retained earnings - - - (131,482) 131,482 - - -

Cost of issue of shares  
at a premium - - - - (3,528) (3,528) - (3,528)

Dividends - - - - (19,748) (19,748) - (19,748)

Share-based payments - - - - 55 55 - 55

Pro)t/(loss) for the year - - - - 7,735 7,735 (15) 7,720

Other comprehensive income  
for the year - - (6,695) - 1,396 (5,299) (19) (5,318)

Balance at 31 December 2011 63,883 112,731 30,118 - 301,854 508,586 818 509,404

Dividends - - - - (26,831) (26,831) - (26,831)

Share-based payments - - - - 431 431 - 431

Pro)t for the year - - - - 39,408 39,408 178 39,586

Other comprehensive expense  
for the year - - (6,213) - - (6,213) (20) (6,233)

Balance at 31 December 2012 63,883 112,731 23,905 - 314,862 515,381 976 516,357
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Company      
 Share Share Merger Retained  
 capital premium reserve earnings Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 January 2011 45,365 112,731  151,276 309,372

Ordinary shares issued  
at a premium 18,518 - 131,482 - 150,000

Transfer to retained earnings - - (131,482) 131,482 -

Cost of issue of shares  
at a premium - - - (3,528) (3,528)

Dividends - - - (19,748) (19,748)

Share-based payments - - - 55 55

Pro)t for the year - - - 1,283 1,283

Other comprehensive income  
for the year - - - 1,396 1,396

Balance at 31 December 2011 63,883 112,731 - 262,216 438,830

Dividends - - - (26,831) (26,831)

Share-based payments - - - 431 431

Pro)t for the year - - - 1,252 1,252

Balance at 31 December 2012 63,883 112,731 - 237,068 413,682

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the pro)t and loss account of the parent Company is not 
presented as part of these accounts. The parent Company’s pro)t for the )nancial year amounted to £1,252,000  
(2011: £1,283,000).
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  Group Group Company Company 
  2012 2011 2012 2011 
 Note £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Net cash in.ow/(out.ow) from operating activities 29 39,398 29,836 59,082 (7,938)

Investing activities

 Interest received  1,523 1,391 3,983 3,063

 Dividends received  - - 18,000 -

 Investments in subsidiaries  - - (90,217) (30,000)

 Sale of subsidiary  979 - - -

 Additions to property, plant and equipment  (80) (75) - -

 Additions to investment properties  (72,158) (38,652) - -

 Proceeds from sale of investment properties  31,720 23,407 - -

 Income distributions received from associates  1,529 261 - -

Net cash used in investing activities  (36,487) (13,668) (68,234) (26,937)

Financing activities

 Dividends paid  (26,831) (19,748) (26,831) (19,748)

 Proceeds from issue of shares at a premium net of expenses  - 146,472 - 146,472

 Repayments of obligations under )nance leases  (158) (319) - -

 New bank loans raised (net of expenses)  6,674 47,394 - -

 Bank loans repaid (net of expenses)  (21,572) (61,428) - -

 Additions to derivative )nancial instruments  (11,053) (6,946) (10,971) (6,946)

 Proceeds on disposal of derivative )nancial instruments  9,202 1,436 9,202 1,436

 Settlement of derivative )nancial instruments  (1,936) (27,301) - -

Net cash (used in)/generated by -nancing activities  (45,674) 79,560 (28,600) 121,214

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (42,763) 95,728 (37,752) 86,339

 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  162,503 67,442 133,618 47,434

 E(ect of changes in foreign exchange rates  (824) (667) (206) (155)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 24 118,916 162,503 95,660 133,618

Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 General information
Hansteen Holdings PLC is a company which was incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered 
in England and Wales on 27 October 2005. The Company is required to comply with the provisions of 
the Companies Act 2006. The address of the registered o'ce is 6th Floor, Clarendon House, 12 Cli(ord 
Street, London W1S 2LL.

The Group’s principal activity is investing in mainly industrial properties in Continental Europe and the 
United Kingdom.

These )nancial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling because that is the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance 
with the policies set out in note 3.

2 Adoption of new and revised standards
Standards, amendments and interpretations that became e(ective and were adopted in 2012 but have no 
e(ect on the Group’s operations:

• Amendments to IAS 1  Presentation of )nancial statements (amended June 2011)

• Amendments to IAS 12   Income taxes

• Amendments to IAS 19  Employee Bene)ts (revised June 2011)

• Amendments to IFRS 7   Financial instruments: Disclosures

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet e(ective and have not 
been adopted early by the Group:

• IFRS 1 (amended)  Government Loans

• IFRS 7 (amended)  Disclosures - O(setting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

• Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009 – 2011 Cycle

• IFRS 9    Financial Instruments

• IFRS 10   Consolidated Financial Statements

• IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investment entities (amended)

• IFRS 11   Joint Arrangements

• IFRS 12   Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

• IFRS 13   Fair Value Measurement

• IAS 27 (revised)   Separate Financial Statements

• IAS 28 (revised)  Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

• IAS 32 (amended)  O(setting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

• IFRIC 20   Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

The Directors are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of the above standards and 
interpretations in future periods on the )nancial statements of the Group.



30 HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Signi-cant accounting policies 
Basis of accounting
The )nancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as detailed in the Directors’ 
Report on page 71 and in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) adopted 
by the European Union and therefore the Group )nancial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS 
Regulation.

The )nancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of 
investment properties and certain )nancial instruments. 

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted where relevant to ensure comparability with the 
current year’s presentation. The preparation of )nancial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that a(ect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the )nancial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on 
management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results may di(er from those 
estimates. 

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated )nancial statements incorporate the )nancial statements of the Company and entities 
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December. Control is achieved where the 
Company has the power to govern the )nancial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to 
obtain bene)ts from its activities.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identi)ed separately from 
the Group’s equity. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of 
the original business combination and the non-controlling interests’ share of changes in equity since 
the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interest in excess of the non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interest of the Group except to the 
extent that the non-controlling has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to 
cover the losses.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated 
income statement from the e(ective date of acquisition or up to the e(ective date of disposal. 

Adjustments are made to the )nancial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used 
into line with those used by the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Business combinations
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of the acquisition 
is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred 
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the 
income statement as incurred. The acquiree’s identi)able assets and liabilities are recognised at their fair 
values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in 
the acquiree, if any, over the net amounts of identi)able assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the 
acquisition date. 

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period 
in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the 
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, 
or additional assets and liabilities are recognised, to re*ect new information obtained about facts and 
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circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have a(ected the amounts 
recognised as of that date. 

The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains 
complete information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and is subject 
to a maximum of one year. 

Non-controlling interests in the acquiree are measured at the non-controlling shareholder’s 
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identi)able net assets. 

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost. If the 
Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identi)able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree, the excess is recognised immediately in pro)t or loss as a bargain purchase gain. 

Goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to bene)t from the 
combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment 
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is 
allocated )rst to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other 
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment 
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classi)ed as held for sale if their carrying amount will be 
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as 
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate 
sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to 
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classi)cation.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classi)ed as held for sale, except investment properties, 
are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Investment properties 
classi)ed as held for sale are carried at fair value.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and 
other sales-related taxes.

Rental income is recognised on an accruals basis. Where a lease incentive is granted, which does not 
enhance the value of the property, or a rent-free period is granted, the e(ective cost is amortised on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Property management fees are recognised in the period to which they relate.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the e(ective 
interest rate applicable.

Revenue from the sale of trading and investment properties is recognised when the signi)cant risks and 
returns have been transferred to the buyer. This generally coincides with the transfer of the legal title 
or the passing of possession to the buyer. The pro)t on disposal of trading and investment properties is 
determined as the di(erence between the consideration received and the carrying amount of the asset at 
the commencement of the accounting period plus any additions in the period.
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Leasing
Leases are classi)ed as )nance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classi)ed as operating leases. Where 
a property is held under a head lease it is initially recognised as an asset as the sum of the premium 
paid on acquisition and the present value of minimum ground rent payments. The corresponding rent 
liability to the head leaseholder is included in the balance sheet as a )nance lease obligation. Where only 
the buildings element of a property lease is classi)ed as a )nance lease, the ground rent payments for the 
land element are shown within operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to 
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. When accounting for a 
lease of land and buildings, the Group considers the land and buildings elements separately. The Group 
does not classify those land elements that are held under operating leases as investment property.

Foreign currencies
The individual )nancial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated 
)nancial statements, the results and )nancial position of each Group company are expressed in Pounds 
Sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the 
consolidated )nancial statements.

In preparing the )nancial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than 
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing 
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. 
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange di(erences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary 
items, are included in pro)t or loss for the period in which they arise. Exchange di(erences arising on 
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in pro)t or loss for the period 
in which they arise except for di(erences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect 
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange 
component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated )nancial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s 
foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income 
and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates 
*uctuate signi)cantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are 
used. Exchange di(erences arising, if any, are classi)ed as equity and transferred to the Group’s foreign 
currency translation reserve. Such translation di(erences are recognised as income or as expenses in the 
period in which the operation is disposed of.

Share-based payments
The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments to employees is determined at the date of grant 
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Company’s estimate of 
options that will eventually vest. Fair value is measured by use of a binomial model or the Company’s 
share price less the discounted value of estimated future dividends, as appropriate. The expected life 
used in the binomial model has been adjusted based on management’s best estimate, for the e(ects of 
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.
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Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable pro)t for the year. Taxable pro)t di(ers from net pro)t as 
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s 
liability for current and deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on di(erences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities in the )nancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable pro)t, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary di(erences and deferred tax assets are 
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable pro)ts will be available against which deductible 
temporary di(erences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is 
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when 
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in 
equity. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are o(set when there is a legally enforceable right to set o( current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Operating pro-t
Operating pro)t is stated after the share of results of associates and pro)t on sale of subsidiaries, but 
before changes in fair value of derivative )nancial instruments, )nance income, )nance costs and 
foreign exchange movements relating to intercompany funding.

Property, plant and equipment
This comprises computers, )xtures and )ttings and o'ce equipment, which are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. 

Depreciation is charged so as to write o( the cost or valuation of computers, )xtures and )ttings and 
o'ce equipment, less residual value, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on 
the following bases:

Computer equipment three years

Fixtures and )ttings )ve years

O'ce equipment  three years

Investment properties
Investment properties, which comprises freehold and leasehold property held to earn rentals and/or for 
capital appreciation, are treated as acquired when the Group assumes the signi)cant risks and rewards 
of ownership. Acquisitions of investment properties including related transaction costs and subsequent 
additions of a capital nature are initially recognised in the accounts at cost. At each reporting date the 
investment properties are revalued to their fair values based on a professional valuation at the balance 
sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in 
pro)t or loss for the period in which they arise. 

Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provisions for impairment. 
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Investments in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise signi)cant in*uence, but not 
control or joint control, through participation in the )nancial and operating policy decisions of the 
investee. Signi)cant in*uence is the power to participate in the )nancial and operating policy decisions 
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these )nancial statements using 
the equity method of accounting. Investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost as 
adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less any 
impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s 
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the 
Group’s net investment in the associate) are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred 
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, pro)ts and losses are eliminated to the 
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate. Losses may provide evidence of an impairment of 
the asset transferred in which case appropriate provision is made for impairment.

Trading properties
Trading properties are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value and are treated as acquired 
when the Group assumes the signi)cant risks and rewards of ownership. Cost includes development 
costs speci)cally attributable to properties in the course of development. Net realisable value represents 
the estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. 

Financial instruments
Financial assets and )nancial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when the Group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets
All )nancial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an 
investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe 
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, 
except for those )nancial assets classi)ed as at fair value through pro)t or loss, which are initially 
measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classi)ed into the following categories: )nancial assets ‘at fair value through pro)t 
or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) )nancial assets and ‘loans 
and receivables’. The classi)cation depends on the nature and purpose of the )nancial assets and is 
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classi)ed as at FVTPL where the )nancial asset is either held for trading or it is 
designated as at FVTPL. A )nancial asset is classi)ed as held for trading if:

•  it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

•  it is a part of an identi)ed portfolio of )nancial instruments that the Group manages together and 
has a recent actual pattern of short-term pro)t-taking; or 

•  it is a derivative that is not designated and e(ective as a hedging instrument.
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A )nancial asset other than a )nancial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition if:

•  such designation eliminates or signi)cantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
that would otherwise arise; or 

•  the )nancial asset forms part of a group of )nancial assets or )nancial liabilities or both, which 
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s 
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Group is 
provided internally on that basis; or

•  it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives that can be designated as 
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in pro)t or 
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in pro)t or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the 
)nancial asset.

Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have )xed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market are classi)ed as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at 
amortised cost using the e(ective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised 
by applying the e(ective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest 
would be immaterial.

AFS -nancial assets
Non-derivative )nancial assets that are not classi)ed as loans and receivables or held-to-maturity 
investments, are not held for trading and are not designated as FVTPL on initial recognition are 
classi)ed as AFS. AFS )nancial assets are measured at fair value with fair value gains or losses recognised 
in other comprehensive income. On sale or impairment of the asset, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassi)ed to pro)t or loss as a reclassi)cation 
adjustment. Impairment losses on AFS )nancial assets are recognised in pro)t or loss. Dividends on 
an AFS equity instrument are recognised in pro)t or loss when the entity’s right to receive payment is 
established. 

Impairment of -nancial assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance 
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more 
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the )nancial asset, the estimated future cash *ows of 
the investment have been impacted. Objective evidence of impairment could include:

•  signi)cant )nancial di'culty of the issuer or counterparty; or

•  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

•  it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or )nancial re-organisation.

The carrying amount of the )nancial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all )nancial 
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of 
an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written o( against the 
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written o( are credited against the 
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in pro)t or 
loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed through pro)t or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the 



36 HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have 
been had the impairment not been recognised. 

Where an AFS )nancial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains previously recognised in 
other comprehensive income are reclassi)ed to pro)t and loss in the period. In the case of AFS equity 
instruments, if, in a subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is not reversed through pro)t and loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an 
impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an 
insigni)cant risk of changes in value.

Derecognition of -nancial assets
The Group derecognises a )nancial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash *ows from the 
asset expire; or it transfers the )nancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained 
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred )nancial asset, the Group continues 
to recognise the )nancial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classi)ed according to the substance of the contractual 
arrangements entered into. 

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and are subsequently 
measured at the higher of:

•  the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and 

•  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in 
accordance with the revenue recognition policies set out above.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classi)ed as either )nancial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other )nancial liabilities’.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classi)ed as at FVTPL where the )nancial liability is either held for trading or it is 
designated as at FVTPL. A )nancial liability is classi)ed as held for trading if:
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•  it has been incurred principally for the purpose of disposal in the near future; or

•  it is a part of an identi)ed portfolio of )nancial instruments that the Group manages together and 
has a recent actual pattern of short-term pro)t-taking; or 

•  it is a derivative that is not designated and e(ective as a hedging instrument. 

A )nancial liability other than a )nancial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon 
initial recognition if:

•  such designation eliminates or signi)cantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
that would otherwise arise; or 

•  the )nancial liability forms part of a group of )nancial assets or )nancial liabilities or both, which 
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s 
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Group is 
provided internally on that basis; or

•  it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives that can be designated as 
at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in pro)t 
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in pro)t or loss incorporates any interest paid on the )nancial 
liability.

Other -nancial liabilities
Other )nancial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction 
costs. Other )nancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the e(ective interest 
method, with interest expense recognised on an e(ective yield basis. The e(ective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the )nancial liability, 
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

De-recognition of -nancial liabilities
The Group derecognises )nancial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. Where an existing )nancial liability is replaced by another from 
the same lender on substantially di(erent terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modi)ed, such an exchange or modi)cation is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability, and the di(erence in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
income statement. 

Derivative -nancial instruments
The Group enters into a variety of derivative )nancial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate 
and foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts and options and interest 
rate swaps and caps. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is 
recognised in pro)t or loss immediately.

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of 
the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. 
Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
balance sheet date used in preparing these accounts are:

Property valuations 
In determining the fair value of investment properties there is a degree of uncertainty and judgement 
involved. The valuations are based on a number of assumptions, the signi)cant ones of which are the 
appropriate discount rates, estimates of future rental income and capital expenditure. The Group uses 
external professional valuers to provide independent valuations of the investment properties.

Derivative -nancial instruments 
In determining the fair value of derivatives, there is a degree of judgement involved. The valuations of 
these derivatives are performed by external professionals.

Deferred tax 
Determining the amount of tax losses to be recognised as deferred tax assets requires management to 
estimate the level and probability of future taxable pro)ts that those losses can be o(set against, in each 
relevant entity and jurisdiction.

Valuation of share based payments 
In calculating the expense in relation to share based payments, the Company is required to estimate the 
probability of share and options awards vesting and the fair value of a share and option at the grant date 
and the balance sheet date. These estimates involve making a variety of assumptions concerning rents 
and related costs, yields, administrative costs, interest rates, exchange rates, dividend rates and the rate 
and level of property acquisitions.

5 Revenue and cost of sales
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and cost of sales is as follows:
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000
Investment property rental income  66,780 61,715
Trading property sales  8,758 641
Property management fees  1,719 1,436
Revenue  77,257 63,792
Direct operating expenses relating to investment properties  
that generated rental income  (11,218) (11,702)
Direct operating expenses relating to investment properties  
that did not generate rental income  (288) (193)
Direct operating expenses  (11,506) (11,895)
Cost of sales of trading properties  (8,198) (809)
Cost of sales  (19,704) (12,704)
Gross pro-t  57,553 51,088

Including £1,495,000 of interest income (2011: £1,391,000) total revenue was £78,752,000  
(2011: £65,183,000).
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6. Normalised Income Pro-t and Normalised Total Pro-t
Normalised Income Pro)t and Normalised Total Pro)t are adjusted measures intended to show the 
underlying earnings of the Group before fair value movements and other non-recurring or otherwise 
non-cash one-o( items. A reconciliation of the Normalised Income Pro)t and Normalised Total Pro)t 
reconciled to the pro)t before tax prepared in accordance with IFRS rules is set out below.

Group  2012   2011 
  Share of   Share of 
 Group associate Total Group associate Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Investment property rental income 66,780 4,526 71,306 61,715 2,351 64,066
Direct operating expenses  (11,506) (836) (12,342) (11,895) (750) (12,645)
Property management fees 1,719 - 1,719 1,436 - 1,436
Administrative expenses (14,604) (592) (15,196) (11,483) (525) (12,008)
Net interest payable (13,747) (898) (14,645) (14,981) (121) (15,102)
Normalised Income Pro-t 28,642 2,200 30,842 24,792 955 25,747
Pro)t on sale of investment properties  855 150 1,005 2,722 535 3,257
Pro)t/(loss) on sale of trading properties 610 - 610 (26) - (26)
Pro)t on sale of subsidiary 56 - 56 - - -
Direct costs relating to trading properties (50) - (50) (142) - (142)
Total pro)ts on sale of investment  
and trading properties 1,471 150 1,621 2,554 535 3,089
Other operating income  1,799 - 1,799 5,337 - 5,337
Normalised Total Pro-t 31,912 2,350 34,262 32,683 1,490 34,173
Negative goodwill recognised on acquisition  - - - - 68 68
Costs relating to acquisition of subsidiaries - - - (627) (201) (828)
Fair value gains/(losses)  
on investment properties 18,940 (323) 18,617 (19,324) 1,438 (17,886)
Impairment of available for sale investment - - - (2,901) - (2,901)
Change in fair values of derivatives (6,877) (119) (6,996) (4,727) (52) (4,779)
Foreign exchange gains 314 - 314 1,044 - 1,044
Share of associate’s tax charge - (1) (1) - (2) (2)
Pro-t before tax 44,289 1,907 46,196 6,148 2,741 8,889
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7 Operating segments
Segment revenues and results
The Group’s reportable segments are determined by geographic location, which represents the 
information reported to the Group’s Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment 
of segment performance. A segment’s result consists of its gross pro)t as detailed for the Group in note 
5. Administrative expenses and net )nance costs are managed as central costs and are therefore not 
allocated to segments. Gains/(losses) on investment properties by segment is also presented below.

Group Revenue Result Revenue Result 
 2012 2012 2011 2011 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Belgium 1,729 1,193 2,177 1,931
France 1,327 1,200 1,288 1,197
Germany 44,668 38,092 45,145 36,250
Netherlands 8,697 7,285 9,947 8,331
UK 20,836 9,783 5,235 3,379
Total segment result 77,257 57,553 63,792 51,088
Other operating income  1,799  5,337
Administrative expenses  (14,604)  (12,110)
Share of results of associate   1,907  2,741
Operating pro)t before gains/(losses) on investment properties   46,655  47,056
Gains/(losses) on investment properties by segment: 
Belgium (633)  (4,420) 
France 550  78 
Germany 15,414  6,171 
Netherlands 392  (23,186) 
UK 3,217   2,033 
Total gains/(losses) on investment properties  18,940  (19,324)
Pro)t on disposal of investment properties  855  2,722
Pro)t on sale of subsidiary  56  -
Operating pro)t   66,506  30,454
Impairment of available for sale investment  -  (2,901)
Change in fair value of foreign currency derivatives  (4,752)  429
Net )nance costs   (15,558)  (19,093)
Pro-t before tax   46,196  8,889
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Segment assets
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocated resources between segments, the 
Directors monitor the investment and trading properties attributable to each segment. All assets are 
allocated to reportable segments with the exception of investments in associates and elements of cash, 
derivatives and tax balances that are managed centrally. 

2012 
Group      Additions to Non- 
 Investment Trading Total Other Total investment current 
 properties* properties properties assets assets properties assets 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Belgium 26,727 - 26,727 2,875 29,602 171 27,757
France 14,107 - 14,107 1,101 15,208 - 14,107
Germany 550,159 - 550,159 22,461 572,620 69,352 540,805
Netherlands 113,382 - 113,382 3,509 116,891 194 113,555
UK 127,945 10,765 138,710 10,776 149,486 18,463 160,975
Total segment assets 832,320 10,765 843,085 40,722 883,807 88,180 857,199
Unallocated assets      141,640   6,336
Total assets      1,025,447   863,535

2011 
Group      Additions to Non- 
 Investment Trading Total Other Total investment current 
 properties* properties properties assets assets properties assets 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Belgium 29,044 - 29,044 3,389 32,433 136 30,944
France 13,910 - 13,910 1,473 15,383 - 13,910
Germany 500,310 - 500,310 25,767 526,077 25,248 488,648
Netherlands 119,266 - 119,266 6,390 125,656 320 119,924
UK 112,065 17,476 129,541 5,377 134,918 75,799 112,352
Total segment assets 774,595 17,476 792,071 42,396 834,467 101,503 765,778
Unallocated assets     188,251  42,589
Total assets     1,022,718  808,367

*  Includes investment properties held for sale. The comparative has been adjusted to give consistent 
presentation in this respect.
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8. Pro-t for the year
Pro)t for the year has been arrived at after (charging)/crediting:
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) included in administrative expenses  22 (209)
Net foreign exchange gains included in net )nance costs  314 1,044
Costs relating to acquisition of subsidiaries  - (627)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  (107) (86)
Pro)t on sale of investment properties  855 2,722
Increase/(decrease) in fair value of investment properties  18,940 (19,324)
Auditor’s remuneration  (490) (818)
Sta( costs (see note 9)  (7,695) (5,828)
Other operating income – insurance receipts  1,799 5,337

The analysis of auditor’s remuneration is as follows:
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and their associates  
for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts  62 65
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and their associates  
for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries  274 279
Total audit fees  336 344
Audit-related services  43 47
Taxation compliance services  111 143
Other taxation advisory service  - 120
Corporate )nance services  - 145
Other assurance services  - 3
Other services  - 16
Total non-audit services  154 474
Total auditor’s remuneration  490 818

- Audit-related services comprise fees for the review of the Group’s interim announcement

-  Taxation compliance and advisory services fees comprise fees for UK and overseas income tax, VAT and 
property tax advisory services.

-  Corporate )nance services comprise fees paid for reporting accountant services in respect of the Placing 
and Open O(er in May 2011. 

- Other assurance services comprise fees paid in respect of the modi)cation of share option schemes 

- Other services comprises IT governance review work. 

Details of the Company’s policy on the use of auditors for non-audit services and how the auditor’s 
independence and objectivity was safeguarded are set out in the Audit Committee Report on page 83.  
No services were provided pursuant to contingent fee arrangements. 
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9 Sta/ costs
The average monthly number of employees (excluding Non-Executive Directors) was:
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  Number Number

Finance and administration  31 28
Property  36 21
  67 49
   
Their aggregate remuneration was:  £’000 £’000

Wages and salaries  6,008 4,905
Share-based payments  431 55
Social security costs  948 648
Other pension costs  308 220
  7,695 5,828

The amounts shown against pension costs comprise amounts payable by the Group to personal pension 
schemes of the employees.

The Company had no employees in either the current or preceding )nancial year. 

10 Net -nance costs
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Interest receivable on bank deposits  1,166 1,304
Other interest receivable  329 87
Finance income  1,495 1,391
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts  (14,961) (16,193)
Interest payable on obligations under )nance leases  (141) (163)
Other interest payable  (140) (16)
Finance costs  (15,242) (16,372)
Net interest payable  (13,747) (14,981)
Decrease in fair value of interest rate swaps and caps  (2,125) (5,156)
Foreign exchange gains  314 1,044
Net )nance costs  (15,558) (19,093)
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11 Tax
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

UK current tax   
On net income of the current year  113 126
Credit in respect of prior years  (21) (35)
  92 91
Foreign current tax   
On net income of the current year  2,041 1,249
Charge/(credit) in respect of prior years  950 (324)
  2,991 925
Total current tax  3,083 1,016
Deferred tax (see note 20)  3,527 153
Total tax charge  6,610 1,169

UK Corporation Tax is calculated at 24.5% (2011: 26.5%) of the estimated assessable pro)t for the year. 
Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the pro)t per the income statement as follows:
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Pro)t before tax  46,196 8,889
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 24.5% (2011: 26.5%)  11,318 2,356
Tax e"ect of:   
UK tax not payable due to REIT exemption  (2,269) (2,488)
Foreign exchange di(erences  113 126
Deferred tax assets not recognised  (938) 3,642
E(ect of di(erent tax rates in overseas subsidiaries  (2,589) (1,873)
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable pro)t  (180) (232)
Change in deferred tax due to change in tax rate  99 62
Other  73 6
Adjustment in respect of prior years  983 (430)
  6,610 1,169

The Group elected to be treated as a UK REIT in 2009 following admission to the O'cial List. The UK 
REIT rules exempt the pro)ts of the Group’s property rental business from UK Corporation Tax. Gains on 
UK properties are also exempt from tax provided they are not held for trading. The Group’s UK activities 
are otherwise subject to UK Corporation Tax. To remain a UK REIT there are a number of conditions to be 
met in respect of the principal company of the Group, the Group’s qualifying activity and its balance of 
business which are set out in the UK REIT legislation in the Corporation Tax Act 2011. 
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12 Dividends
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:   
Second dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 of 2.4p (2010: 2.1p) per share 15,334 9,527
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of 1.8p (2011: 1.6p) per share 11,497 10,221
  26,831 19,748

As a REIT, the Company is required to pay Property Income Distributions (‘PIDs’) equal to at least 90% of 
the Group’s exempted net income, after deduction of withholding tax at the basic rate (currently 20%). 
£6,133,000 of the dividends paid during the year ended 31 December 2012 is attributable to PIDs (2011: 
£8,883,000).

13 Earnings per share and net asset value per share
The European Public Real Estate Association (EPRA) has issued recommended bases for the calculation 
of certain earnings per share (EPS) information. Diluted EPRA EPS is reconciled to the IFRS measure in 
the following table: 
Group  2012   2011 
  Weighted   Weighted 
  average Earnings  average Earnings 
  number of per  number of per 
 Earnings shares share Earnings shares share 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 pence

Normalised Income Pro)t 30,842 638,833 4.8 25,747 575,932 4.5
Normalised Total Pro)t 34,262 638,833 5.4 34,173 575,932 5.9
      
Basic EPS 39,408 638,833 6.2 7,735 575,932 1.3
Dilutive share options - 99 - - 155 -
Diluted EPS 39,408 638,932 6.2 7,735 576,087 1.3
Adjustments:      
Fair value (gains)/losses  
on investment properties (18,940)   19,324  
Pro)t on sale of investment properties (855)   (2,722)  
(Pro)t)/loss on sale of trading properties (560)   26  
Pro)t on sale of subsidiary (56)   -  
Cost of acquiring subsidiaries -   627  
Change in fair value of derivatives 6,877   4,727  
Adjustment in respect of associates 292   (1,786)  
Income tax on the above items 4,166     548  
Diluted EPRA EPS 30,332 638,932 4.7 28,479 576,087 4.9
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The calculations for net asset value (NAV) per share are shown in the table below:
Group  2012   2011 
   Net   Net 
 Equity Number asset Equity’ Number value 
 shareholders’ of per shareholders’ of per 
 funds shares share funds shares share 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 pence

Basic NAV 515,381 638,833 81 508,586 638,833 80
Unexercised share options 681 1,000 -  563 850 -
Diluted NAV 516,062 639,833 81 509,149 639,683 80
Adjustments:      
Goodwill (1,959)   (2,188)  
Fair value of interest rate derivatives 9,532   9,880  
Deferred tax 8,868     5,627  
Diluted EPRA NAV 532,503 639,833 83 522,468 639,683 82

14 Goodwill
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Cost:   
At 1 January   2,467 2,231
Additions   - 287
Disposal  (180) 
Impact of foreign currency movements  (56) (51)
At 31 December  2,231 2,467
Impairment:   
At 1 January   279 285
Impairment charged during the year  - -
Impact of foreign currency movements  (7) (6)
At 31 December  272 279
Carrying amount:   
At 31 December  1,959 2,188
By segment:   
Belgium  1,672 1,901
UK  287 287

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are any indications that 
goodwill might be impaired. The recoverable amounts are determined on the basis of fair value less costs 
to sell by reference to the valuation of the underlying properties as performed by external valuers. 

The assumptions in relation to determining the fair value of the Belgian portfolio are the fair value of the 
investment properties and the discount to be applied in the sale transaction in respect of deferred tax 
liabilities. On disposal of a Belgium company, a sales price discount may be negotiated because of the 
potential capital gains tax. The discount varies widely and is open to negotiation. A discount of greater 
than 50% (2011: 50%) would lead to an impairment of the goodwill relating to the Belgian portfolio.
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15 Property, plant and equipment
Group Fixtures and O'ce Computer  
 )ttings equipment equipment Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost:    
At 1 January 2011 182 20 174 376
Additions 5 4 66 75
At 1 January 2012 187 24 240 451
Additions 21 9 59 89
Disposals - - (9) (9)
At 31 December 2012 208 33 290 531
    
Accumulated depreciation:    
At 1 January 2011 31 7 101 139
Charge for the year 37 7 42 86
At 1 January 2012 68 14 143 225
Charge for the year 41 9 57 107
Disposals - - (9) (9)
At 31 December 2012 109 23 191 323
    
Net book value:    
At 31 December 2012 99 10 99 208
At 31 December 2011 119 10 97 226

16 Investment property
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

At 1 January  762,143 728,239
Additions – direct property purchases  77,646 25,364
                       – properties acquired through business combinations  - 62,840
                       – capital expenditure  10,495 13,935
Lease incentives  645 -
Revaluation  18,940 (19,324)
Disposals  (22,385) (20,685)
Transfer to investment property held for sale  (10,948) (12,452)
Exchange adjustment  (15,164) (15,774)
At 31 December  821,372 762,143

   
Investment property held for sale:   
At 1 January  12,452 -
Additions - capital expenditure  39 -
Disposals  (12,105) -
Transfer from investment property  10,948 -
Exchange adjustment  (386) 12,452
At 31 December  10,948 12,452
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Included within the property valuation is £2,843,000 (2011: £1,637,000) in respect of tenant lease 
incentives granted. 

Investment property includes £2,989,000 (2011: £3,452,000) property held under )nance leases.

Properties classi)ed as held for sale at 31 December 2012 represent properties that were actively 
marketed as at the year end and have subsequently been sold, or agreements for their sale have been 
entered into. 

All investment properties are stated at fair value as at 31 December and have been valued by independent 
professionally quali)ed external valuers; DTZ, Jones Lang LaSalle or Knight Frank LLP. The valuations 
have been prepared in accordance with the RICS Valuation – Professional Standards 2012, published by 
The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and with IVA1 of the International Valuation Standards.

The valuations are based on a number of assumptions, the signi)cant ones of which are the appropriate 
discount rates, estimates of future rental income and capital expenditure. Rental income and yield 
assumptions are supported by market evidence where relevant.

The Group has pledged certain of its investment properties to secure bank loan facilities and a )nance 
lease granted to the Group (see note 26). 

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had entered into contracts for £10 million of building works that were 
not complete. 

17 Investment in subsidiary undertakings
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Cost and net book value:   
Balance at 1 January  242,958 212,942
Recapitalisation of subsidiary  90,218 30,000
Impairment of subsidiary  (10,730) -
Acquisition of Spencer Group  - 16
Balance at 31 December  322,446 242,958

The impairment in the year relates to the carrying value of an investment in a subsidiary that had paid a 
dividend of £18,000,000 in the year. The decline in the value in the subsidiary’s net assets from paying 
the dividend resulted in a provision against the carrying value of the investment.

No subsidiaries are excluded from consolidation.
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Details of all of the Company’s signi)cant subsidiaries at 31 December 2012 are as follows:
  Proportion of Proportion of 
  ownership voting power 
 Place of interest held 
 incorporation % %

Arman B01 BVBA* Belgium 100.00 100.00
I.P.I Nossegem NV* Belgium 100.00 100.00
Small Island Management NV* Belgium 100.00 100.00
Tycoons Immo BVBA* Belgium 100.00 100.00
Vignée Invest NV* Belgium 100.00 100.00
Waterloo Investments NV* Belgium 100.00 100.00
Hansteen France SAS France 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Gustavsburg S.à r.l & Co KG* Germany 99.76 99.76
Hansteen Bad Schonborn S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Billbrook S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Borsigstrasse S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Braunschweig S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Bremen S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Cologne S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Delta GP S.à r.l* Luxembourg 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Dormagen S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Dusseldorf S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Geldern S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Germany (4) S.à r.l*/** Luxembourg 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany (5) S.à r.l*/** Luxembourg 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany Holdings S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Gladbeck S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Gottmadingen S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Hannover S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Holzhauser Markt S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Ladbergen S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Leipzig S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Luxembourg Investments S.à r.l Luxembourg 94.90 50.00
Hansteen Luxembourg S.à r.l Luxembourg 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Maisach S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Miraustrasse S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Neukirchen-Vluyn S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Neuss S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Paderborn S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Philipp-Reis Strasse S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Pleidelsheim S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Porschestrasse S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Querumer Forst S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Regensburg S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Rodenbach S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Soltau S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
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CONTINUED  Proportion of Proportion of 
  ownership voting power 
 Place of interest held 
 incorporation % %

Hansteen Tegel S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Troisdorf S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Viersen S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Waldstrasse S.à r.l* Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Netherlands B.V. Netherlands 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Ormix B.V.* Netherlands 75.00 100.00
Hansteen Belgium Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany (2) Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany (3) Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany Residential Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Industrial Estates Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Industrial Investments Limited** United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Land Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen LP Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen OBP Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Property Investments Limited  United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen SPI Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen SPO Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen STC Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00

*   Held indirectly 
** Incorporated during the year
Each of the undertakings listed above is engaged in property development, investment or management.

18 Investment in associates
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Cost and net book value:   
Balance at 1 January 2012  32,852 30,372
Share of pro)t after tax for the year  1,907 2,741
Distributions received  (1,529) -
Distributions accrued  (489) (261)
At 31 December 2012  32,741 32,852

The Group has a 33.3% ownership interest in Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust with 30% of 
the voting power. Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust is a Jersey unit trust involved in property 
investment and management.
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Aggregated amounts relating to associates
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Total assets  178,685 182,397
Total liabilities  (80,466) (83,843)
   
Revenues  13,580 7,053
Pro)t  5,721 8,225

19 Other investments
The Group holds 10,377,389 shares held in Warner Estate Holding PLC. The investment was fully impaired 
in the year ending 31 December 2011. 

20 Deferred tax
Group Carrying  Currency  
 value of contracts and  Short-term 
 investment interest rate  timing 
 properties derivatives Losses di(erences Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 1 January 2012 (9,502) 2,139 2,754 (1,076) (5,685)
(Charge)/credit to income (3,516) (408) 149 248 (3,527)
Exchange di(erences 483 (40) (85) 9 367
At 31 December 2012 (12,535) 1,691 2,818 (819) (8,845)
Deferred tax assets - 1,517 711 - 2,228
Deferred tax liabilities (12,535) 174 2,107 (819) (11,073)

Company Carrying  Currency  
 value of contracts and  Short-term 
 investment interest rate  timing 
 properties derivatives Losses di(erences Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 1 January 2012 - 600 726 - 1,326
Charge to income - (188) (34) - (222)
At 31 December 2012 - 412 692 - 1,104
Deferred tax assets - 412 692 - 1,104

At 31 December 2012 the Group has unutilised tax losses of £86,024,000 (2011: £88,881,000) available for 
o(set against future taxable pro)ts. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £9,388,000 
(2011: £9,769,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining 
losses due to the unpredictability of future taxable pro)ts. 
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Unutilised losses carried forward at 31 December for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 
expire as follows:
 Group Group Company Company 
 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Expiring in 2016 - 93 - -
Expiring in 2017 4,579 6,171 - -
Expiring in 2018 3,100 2,742 - -
Expiring in 2019 3,873 3,975 - -
Expiring in 2020 17,380 17,656 - -
Carried forward without restriction 47,704 48,475 30,337 25,416
Total 76,636 79,112 30,337 25,416

The UK Government has announced that UK Corporation Tax rates will fall over the period to 1 April 
2014 from the current rate of 24% to 22%. The impact of the proposed rate change is not material to the 
Group. 

21 Derivative -nancial instruments 
The Group enters into derivative )nancial instruments to provide an economic hedge to its interest rate 
and foreign exchange risks. Further details on interest rate and foreign exchange risks are included in 
note 34. 
 Group Group Company Company 
 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Currency options 5,197 8,180 5,197 8,180
Interest rate caps 6 41 1 5
Interest rate swaps (10,098) (9,921) (1,902) (2,109)
  (4,895) (1,700) 3,296 6,076
Current assets 176 - 176 -
Non-current assets 5,027 8,221 5,022 8,185
Non-current liabilities (10,098) (9,921) (1,902) (2,109)

Foreign currency derivative -nancial instruments
Group and Company
 Average contract Notional principal 
 exchange rate amount Fair value
 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 EUR:GBP EUR:GBP £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Currency options - buy Euro: sell Sterling      
In less than one year 1:1.300 - 26,923 - 176 -
In more than one year but less than two 1:1.247 1:1.200 188,583 166,710 5,021 8,180
In more than two years but less than )ve - - - - - -
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Interest rate derivative -nancial instruments
Group
 Average contract Notional principal 
 )xed interest rate amount Fair value
 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 % % £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Interest rate swaps – receive #oating pay !xed      
In less than one year - - - - - -
In more than one year but less than two 2.5 4.5 61,160 41,841 (1,902) (2,328)
In more than two years but less than )ve 1.9 2.3 215,282 231,360 (8,196) (7,593)
      276,442 273,201 (10,098) (9,921)
Interest rate caps – receive #oating pay !xed      
In less than one year - - - - - -
In more than one year but less than two 4.0 4.9 20,387 41,841 1 -
In more than two years but less than )ve 4.8 5.7 76,236 64,435 5 41
      96,623 106,276 6 41

Company
 Average contract Notional principal 
 )xed interest rate amount Fair value
 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 % % £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Interest rate swaps – receive #oating pay !xed      
In less than one year - - - - - -
In more than one year but less than two 2.5 - 61,160 - (1,902) -
In more than two years but less than )ve - 2.5 - 62,762 - (2,109)
      61,160 62,762 (1,902) (2,109)
Interest rate caps – receive #oating pay !xed      
In less than one year - - - - - -
In more than one year but less than two 4.0 - 20,387 - 1 -
In more than two years but less than )ve - 4.0 - 20,921 - 5
      20,387 20,921 1 5

22 Trading properties
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 January  17,476 16,397
Additions  1,295 1,713
Disposals  (8,006) (634)
Balance at 31 December  10,765 17,476

The carrying amount approximates the fair value of the trading properties.
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23 Trade and other receivables
 Group Group Company Company 
 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Trade receivables 4,958 4,725 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 113,098 117,012
Amounts owed by related parties 371 392 - -
Other receivables 7,964 13,409 233 7,415
Prepayments and accrued income 7,814 3,394 27 181
 21,107 21,920 113,358 124,608

Group trade receivables are shown after deducting a provision for bad and doubtful debts of £4,295,000 
(2011: £4,780,000). The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

24 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less. The carrying value of these assets approximates to their fair 
value. Included within cash and cash equivalents is £2,581,000 of restricted cash (2011: £2,278,000). 

25 Trade and other payables
 Group Group Company Company 
 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Trade payables 6,414 4,743 30 4
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 122,018 69,379
Other payables 21,655 1,837 - 16
Accruals 8,761 7,855 134 357
Deferred income 4,874 5,391 - -
 41,704 19,826 122,182 69,756

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing 
costs. The average credit period taken for trade purchases by the Company is 17 days (2011: one day). 
For most suppliers no interest is charged on the trade payables for the )rst 30 days from the date of 
the invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged on the outstanding balances at various interest rates. Other 
payables consist of property acquisition costs that were paid in 2013. The carrying amount of trade and 
other payables approximates their fair value.
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26 Borrowings
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Bank loans  441,639 466,978
Unamortised borrowing costs  (855) (958)
   440,784 466,020
Current liability  4,194 3,287
Non-current liability  436,590 462,733
The bank loans are repayable as follows:   
Within one year or on demand  4,265 3,588
Between one and two years  127,345 94,286
Between three and )ve years  303,164 360,788
Over )ve years  6,865 8,316
   441,639 466,978
Undrawn committed facilities   
Expiring after more than two years  - 5,021
Expiring after more than )ve years  39,580 -

Group
 Covenants
 Facility Drawn Expiry Loan to value Income cover

 +150,000,000 +150,000,000 October 2014 75% 175%
 +235,838,000 +235,838,000 February 2015 95%* 155%
 £38,627,000 £38,627,000 December 2015 70%* 160%
 +90,147,000 +90,147,000 April 2017 80%* 165%
 +2,778,000 +2,778,000 June 2017 70% -
 £39,580,000 - January 2018 60% 200%
 +15,413,000 +15,413,000 August 2018 to December 2026 - -

*On the +236 million facility the loan to value covenant reduces to 85% in 2013 and 75% in 2014. On the 
£39 million facility the loan to value covenant reduces to 65% at the end of 2013 and further reduces to 
50% at the end of 2014. On the +90 million facility the loan to value covenant reduces by 2% per year 
from July 2013.

The undrawn facility at 31 December 2012 relates to a new facility that was arranged in relation to the £60 
million acquisition of investment property from The Industrial Trust that was completed in 2013. See 
note 32 for further details.

Security for secured borrowings at 31 December 2012 is provided by charges on property with an 
aggregate carrying value of £705 million (31 December 2011: £718 million).
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Interest rate and currency pro-le
Group
 2012 2012 2011 2011 
 % £’000 % £’000

Euros 1.8 403,012 3.5 425,657
Sterling 3.6 38,627 3.8 41,321
 2.0 441,639 3.5 466,978

The Group enters into derivative )nancial instruments to provide an economic hedge to its interest 
rate risk. Further details on interest rate risk are included in note 34 and the interest rate derivatives are 
disclosed in note 21. After taking into account the e(ect of the interest rate swaps the weighted average 
interest rates are 3.0% for the Euro borrowings (2011: 3.4%) and 3.9% for the Sterling borrowings  
(2011: 3.8%).

27 Obligations under -nance leases
Group Minimum Present value of 
 lease payments  lease payments
 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Amounts payable under !nance leases:    
Within one year 314 322 165 162
In the second to )fth years inclusive 1,256 1,289 729 718
After )ve years 2,736 3,130 2,253 2,512
 4,306 4,741 3,147 3,392
Less: future )nance charges (1,159) (1,349) - -
Present value of lease obligations 3,147 3,392 3,147 3,392
Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months     165 322
Amount due for settlement after 12 months     2,982 3,070

The lease is denominated in Euros and had an outstanding term of 11 years (2011: 12 years). For the year 
ended 31 December 2012 the interest rate implicit in the lease was 4.8% (2011: 4.8%). Interest rates are 
)xed every )ve years, and interest rate and capital repayments adjusted to re*ect this. 

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount.

The Group’s obligations under the )nance lease are secured by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets.

28 Share capital
 Group and Company
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Issued and fully paid   
638,833,250 ordinary shares of 10p each  63,883 63,883

The share capital comprises one class of ordinary shares carrying no right to )xed income. There 
are no speci)c restrictions on the size of a shareholding or the transfer of shares, except for UK REIT 
restrictions. 

In 2011 the Company raised proceeds of £150,000,000 (£146,472,000 net of expenses) through the issue 
of 185,185,186 new ordinary shares at a price of 81p per share.
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29 Notes to the cash .ow statement
 Group Group Company Company 
 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Pro)t for the year 39,586 7,720 1,252 1,283
Adjustments for:    
Share-based payments 431 55 431 55
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 107 86 - -
Share of pro)ts of associate (1,907) (2,741) - -
Pro)t on sale of investment properties (855) (2,722) - -
Pro)t on sale of subsidiary (56) - - -
Fair value (gains)/losses on investment properties (18,940) 19,324 - -
Impairment of available for sale investment - 2,901 - 2,901
Impairment of investment in subsidiary - - 10,730 -
Fair value losses/(gains) on currency derivatives 4,752 (429) 4,476 (429)
Dividends received - - (18,000) -
Net )nance costs/(income) 15,558 19,173 (978) (590)
Tax charge/(credit) 6,610 1,169 222 (5,242)
Operating cash in*ows/(out*ows)  
before movements in working capital 45,286 44,536 (1,867) (2,022)
Decrease/(increase) in trading properties 6,711 (1,079) - -
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (2,880) 8,823 (13,693) (15,869)
Increase/(decrease) in payables 1,709 (4,448) 71,141 12,309
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 50,826 47,832 55,581 (5,582)
Income taxes received/(paid) 2,840 (2,014) 6,630 -
Interest paid (14,268) (15,982) (3,129) (2,356)
Net cash in*ow/(out*ow) from operating activities 39,398 29,836 59,082 (7,938)

30 Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessee
As at the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease 
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:
    
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Within one year  952 709
In the second to )fth years inclusive  2,758 2,575
After )ve years  33,223 33,423
  36,933 36,707

The expense relating to operating leases in the year was £975,000 (2011: £747,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group under ground rent leases for land 
relating to certain of its buildings that are classi)ed as investment properties and rentals payable in 
respect of its o'ce properties. 
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The Group as lessor
The Group leases all of its investment properties under operating leases. As at the balance sheet date the 
Group had contracted with tenants for the following future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under 
non-cancellable operating leases: 
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Within one year  62,374 61,225
In the second to )fth years inclusive  132,814 128,957
After )ve years   62,942 56,769
    258,130 246,951

31 Share-based payments
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had three equity settled share schemes. 

•  2005 Share Option Scheme

•  Long-term incentive plan

•  Performance Share Plan

The total share-based payment charge for the year under these schemes was £431,000 (2011: £55,000).

2005 Share Option Scheme
The 2005 Share Option Scheme is open to certain senior employees of the Group and currently has six 
participants one of whom, Richard Lowes, was granted options prior to becoming an Executive Director 
of the Company. None of the other Directors of the Company have been granted options under the 
Scheme. In the case of options granted within three months of admission of shares to trading on AIM, 
options are exercisable at the price at which shares were placed in connection with the *oat, being £1 per 
share. All options granted after this date are exercisable at a price equal to the average quoted market 
price of the ordinary shares of the Company on the date of grant. The options have a three-year vesting 
period that is not subject to performance conditions. The options expire if they remain unexercised 
after a period of 10 years from the date of grant. Options are normally forfeited if the employee leaves 
the Group before the options vest. No options were granted under this scheme during the year. The 
aggregate fair value of the outstanding options is £352,000. The weighted average remaining life is 5.97 
(2011: 6.97 years).

Details of the share options outstanding are as follows:
Year issued Exercise price Number outstanding Number exercisable Average remaining life 

2006 93.8p – 120.5p 400,000 400,000 3.1 
2009 66.2p 850,000 850,000 6.3 
2010 79.0p 150,000 150,000 7.3 
2011 83.4p 300,000 - 8.3 

Long-term incentive plan (LTIP)
The Joint Chief Executives are entitled to a bonus share award dependant on the growth in the NAV. NAV 
is de)ned as the fully diluted EPRA NAV for the purposes of the LTIP. The target for the bonus is that the 
NAV per ordinary share (after adding back dividends and other returns to shareholders) must exceed a 
compound growth rate of 10% per annum in a three-year period. The bonus is calculated as 12.5% of the 
excess growth over the 10% growth target, multiplied by the number of ordinary shares in issue. 
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Any amount payable under the Long-Term Incentive Plan is to be satis)ed in full by ordinary shares of 
the Company. No award was due for the three-year period ended 31 December 2012 and no LTIP awards 
have been made since *otation in 2005. This bonus scheme will be repeated to reward performance in 
each three-year period, the next ending on 31 December 2015.

The price per share to be used when determining the number of shares which the Joint Chief Executives 
are entitled to will be the average mid-market quotation for such shares on the Main Market for the )rst 
20 dealing days immediately following the end of the relevant period. A progressive dividend growth 
policy is assumed in all fair value calculations. 

Performance Share Plan (PSP)
The PSP was introduced in 2012. The PSP awards share options with a nil exercise price to Executive 
Directors and the senior management team. The number of options granted is calculated with reference 
to the share price prior to the grant date.

To re*ect the fact that 2012 is a transitional year between the 2005 Share Option Scheme and the PSP, 
two awards, each worth 75% of salary, were granted to participants, one with a two-year performance 
period and one with a three-year performance period. Vesting of the awards is staggered over three years 
with one third vesting each year if performance targets are met. Performance targets are based on Total 
Shareholder Return and Net Asset Value plus dividends relative to a peer group of listed UK REITs.

Year issued Exercise price Number outstanding Number exercisable Average remaining life 

2012 nil 2,858,895 - 9.5 

The inputs to the valuation were:

Weighted average share price 72.34p

Weighted average exercise price nil

Weighted average fair value 51.69p

Expected volatility 31.1%

Expected life 2 years

Risk free rate 0.21%

32 Events after the balance sheet date
A second dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 of 2.7p per share will be payable on 22 
May 2013 to shareholders on the register on 26 April 2013. 

The UK Government has announced that UK Corporation Tax rates will fall over the period to 1 April 
2014 from the current rate of 24% to 22%. The impact of the proposed rate change is not material to the 
Group.

On 27 December 2012 the Company announced that it had exchanged contracts with The Industrial Trust 
to acquire a portfolio of multi-let industrial estates, for £60.0 million gross (£56.8 million net), to be 
satis)ed from existing cash resources and debt via a new borrowing facility.  The portfolio, which forms 
part of The Industrial Trust comprises 32 estates, totalling 1.6 million sq ft, located across the UK. The 
acquisition was completed in January 2013.
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33 Related party transactions
Group
Trading transactions
During the year, Group subsidiaries entered into trading transactions with related parties who are not 
members of the Group:
 Purchase/(provision) Amounts owed (to)/
 of services  from related parties
 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Ormix B.V. 38 44 (4) -
Hansteen UK Industrial Property Limited Partnership (1,222) (1,171) 371 158
Treforest Unit Trust (100) (100) - 30
Hansteen Industrial Parks Limited - - - 44
 (1,284) (1,227) 367 232

Ormix B.V. owns 25% of the issued ordinary shares of Hansteen Ormix B.V. The remaining 75% of 
the issued ordinary shares of Hansteen Ormix B.V. are owned by the Group. Ormix B.V. is therefore 
considered to be a related party of the Group. Purchases of services from Ormix B.V. were made at prices 
comparable with those paid by the Group for similar services from unrelated parties. 

The Group owns 33% of Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust as detailed in note 18. The Group 
provides management services to companies controlled by Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust 
which are made at prices comparable to those that would be charged for similar services provided 
to unrelated parties. Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust’s subsidiaries include Hansteen UK 
Industrial Property Limited Partnership, Treforest Unit Trust and Hansteen Industrial Parks Limited. 

Remuneration of key management personnel
The aggregate remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group 
and the Company, is set out below. The remuneration is paid by Hansteen Limited and forms part of the 
management fee charged to the Company. Further information about the remuneration of individual 
Directors is provided in the audited part of the Remuneration Report on pages 93 and 95.

  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Short-term employee bene)ts  1,888 1,522
Post-employment bene)ts  159 110
  2,047 1,632
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Company
Transactions with subsidiaries
The Company enters into loans with its subsidiaries to provide long-term funding for their investment 
activities. Interest is charged on these loans at LIBOR plus 1.75% (2011: 1.75%) or EURIBOR plus 1.75% 
(2011: 1.75%) for companies owned as at 1 January 2011, or EURIBOR plus 1.10% (2011: 1.10%) for 
Hansteen Germany Holdings S.à r.l., or LIBOR plus 3.0% for companies acquired or incorporated after  
1 January 2011. 

The Company provides an interest-free loan to Hansteen LP Limited to )nance its operations.

The Company is charged management fees by its management subsidiary, Hansteen Limited, which 
undertakes day-to-day management of the Hansteen Group on behalf of the Company.

Surplus funds in subsidiary companies are loaned to the Company at EURIBOR plus 1.75% (2011: 1.75%), 
LIBOR plus 1.75% (2011: 1.75%) or EURIBOR plus 1.10% (2011: 1.10%)  
for Hansteen Germany Holdings S.à r.l.

A summary of the transactions with the subsidiaries is as follows:
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Interest-bearing loans made to subsidiaries  14,476 48,856
Interest-bearing loans repaid by subsidiaries  (16,815) (15,037)
Interest bearing loans made by subsidiaries  (53,425) (14,832)
Interest-bearing loans repaid to subsidiaries  216 12,018
Interest-free loans made to subsidiaries  - 7
Interest-free loans repaid by subsidiaries  (1,150) (12)
Loan fee disbursements recharged to subsidiaries  143 157
Interest income received in respect of interest-bearing loans  2,613 1,984
Interest paid in respect of interest-bearing loans  (2,126) (1,688)
Management fees charged to the Company  1,405 1,425

The balances outstanding at the year end from transactions with subsidiaries are as follows:
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Amounts due from subsidiaries included in trade and other receivables  113,098 117,012
Amounts due to subsidiaries included in trade and other payables  (122,018) (69,379)
  (8,920) 47,633
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34 Financial instruments
The table below sets out the categorisation of the )nancial instruments held by the Group at 31 December 
2012. Where the )nancial instruments are held at fair value the valuation level indicates the priority of 
the inputs to the valuation technique. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices 
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs 
(Level 3). If the inputs used to measure fair value fall within di(erent levels of the hierarchy, the category 
level is based on the lowest priority level input that is signi)cant to the fair value measurement of the 
instrument in its entirety.
  Group Group Company Company 
 Valuation 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 level £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial assets     
Designated as held for trading     
Currency option 2 5,197 8,180 5,197 8,180
Interest rate caps 2 6 41 1 5
  5,203 8,221 5,198 8,185
Available for sale     
Other investments 1 - - - -
Other !nancial assets     
Trade and other receivables  13,293 18,526 113,331 124,427
Cash and cash deposits  118,916 162,503 95,660 133,618
  132,209 181,029 208,991 258,045
  137,412 189,250 214,189 266,230
Financial liabilities      
Designated as held for trading     
Interest rate swaps 2 (10,098) (9,921) (1,902) (2,109)
At amortised cost     
Obligations under )nance leases  (3,147) (3,392) - -
Borrowings  (440,784) (466,020) - -
  (443,931) (469,412) - -
Other !nancial liabilities     
Trade and other payables  (36,830) (14,435) (122,182) (69,756)
  (490,859) (493,768) (124,084) (71,865)

Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going 
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity 
balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings, the 
obligations under )nance leases, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders 
of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings, all as disclosed in the balance 
sheet.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis in conjunction with the 
Board. As part of this review, management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with 
each class of capital and debt.
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Net debt to equity ratio
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Obligations under )nance leases  3,147 3,392
Borrowings  440,784 466,020
Cash and cash equivalents  (118,916) (162,503)
Net debt  325,015 306,909
Equity  515,381 508,586
Net debt to equity ratio  63.1% 60.3%
Carrying value of investment and trading properties  843,085 792,071
Net debt to value ratio  38.6% 38.7%

Reconciliation of movement in net debt in the year
  Group Group 
  2012 2011 
  £’000 £’000

Net debt at beginning of year  306,909 394,199
Cash #ow   
Net decrease/(increase) in cash and cash equivalents  42,763 (95,728)
New bank loans raised (net of expenses)  6,674 47,394
Bank loans repaid (net of expenses)  (21,572) (61,428)
Repayments of obligations under )nance leases  (158) (319)
Other   
Acquired  - 31,618
Foreign exchange movements recognised in equity  (10,384) (9,218)
Foreign exchange movements recognised in the income statement  197 -
Amortisation of bank loan fees  586 391
    325,015 306,909

Financial risk management objectives
The Group monitors and manages the )nancial risks relating to the operations of the Group through 
internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include 
market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the e(ects of these risks by using derivative )nancial instruments to 
economically hedge these risk exposures. The use of )nancial derivatives is governed by the Group’s 
policies approved by the Board of Directors. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by 
the Board and management on a continuous basis. The Group does not enter into or trade in )nancial 
instruments, including derivative )nancial instruments, for speculative purposes.

The Group’s management reports quarterly to the Board and bi-annually to the Audit Committee, an 
independent body that monitors risks and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.
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Market risk
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the )nancial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange 
rates and interest rates. The Group enters into a variety of derivative )nancial instruments to manage its 
exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, including:

•  interest rate swaps and caps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates; and

•  forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options to hedge the exchange rate risk arising 
on translation of the Group’s investment in foreign operations which have the Euro as their 
functional currency.

Foreign currency risk management
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency arises from the fact that there are foreign operations which 
transact business denominated in Euros, with the translation of the local trading performance and local 
net asset to Sterling for each )nancial period and at each balance sheet date giving rise to an exposure 
to *uctuations in the Sterling:Euro exchange rate. The Group’s approach to managing this exposure is 
to fund investments in Euro-denominated operations with equity that is covered by forward currency 
contracts and options to limit the overall exposure of the Group. 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated )nancial instruments at the 
reporting date are as follows. The carrying amount of the Group’s non-)nancial instruments in Euro-
denominated operations is also presented.

2012  GBP EUR Total 
  £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial instruments  49,285 (411,069) (361,784)
Less principal amount of currency options  - (215,506) (215,506)
   49,285 (626,575) (577,290)
Non-)nancial instruments  175,649 696,439 872,088
Net exposure  224,934 69,864 294,798

2011 GBP EUR Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000

Financial instruments 98,452 (417,843) (319,391)
Less principal amount of currency options - (166,710) (166,710)
  98,452 (584,553) (486,101)
Non-)nancial instruments 162,296 657,361 819,657
Net exposure 260,748 72,808 333,556

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is exposed to the Euro though its operations in Belgium, France, Germany and the 
Netherlands. At 31 December 2012 the net assets of the Group were £516,357,000 (2011: £509,404,000) of 
which £286,606,000 were denominated in Euros (2011: £240,455,000). At 31 December 2012 the Group 
had currency options in place to buy £215,506,000 Sterling for 270,000,000 Euros. 



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2012  65

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The table below shows the impact of a 10% strengthening or weakening of Sterling against the Euro in 
relation to )nancial instruments alone.
 Group Group Company Company 
 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Increase foreign exchange rates by 10%    
Increase in pro)t before tax 16,993 12,461 17,363 12,689
Increase in other comprehensive income 38,638 36,968 - -
Decrease foreign exchange rates by 10%    
Decrease in pro)t before tax (10,708) (8,001) (11,160) (8,281)
Decrease in other comprehensive income (47,224) (45,183) - -

Interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at *oating interest rates. 
The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between )xed and *oating rate 
borrowings, by the use of interest rate swap contracts and interest rate cap contracts. 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both 
derivatives and non-derivative instruments during the year. 
 Group Group Company Company 
 2012 2011 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Increase interest rates by 10% 6,546 4,005 2,123 1,722
Decrease interest rates by 10% (6,509) (5,227) (1,680) (1,674)

There would have been no e(ect on amounts recognised directly in equity. 

Interest rate swap and cap contracts
Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the di(erence between )xed and 
*oating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Under interest rate cap 
contracts, the Group has limited its exposure to increases in interest rates by capping interest payable on 
its borrowings. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair 
value of issued )xed rate debt held and the cash *ow exposures on the issued variable rate debt held. 

Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a 
)nancial loss to the Group. 

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is £132,209,000 (2011: £181,029,000) comprising trade and 
other receivables and cash and cash deposits. The Group’s principal credit risk is attributable primarily to 
its trade receivables of £4,958,000 (2011: £4,725,000) which consist principally of rents due from tenants. 
The balance is low relative to both the current and net assets of the Group and the Company.

Potential customers are evaluated for creditworthiness and where necessary collateral is secured. 
There is no concentration of credit risk within the portfolio to either geographical business segment or 
company as the Group has a well spread diverse customer base with no one customer accounting for 
more than 3% (2011: 3%) of the gross rent roll. 

Other receivables consist principally of tax and VAT receivables. These items do not give rise to 
signi)cant credit risk. Cash deposits are held at banks with high credit ratings assigned by international 
credit rating agencies. 
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Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which monitors 
the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements on a regular 
basis. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities. As at 31 
December 2012 the net debt to property value was 38.6% and the Group had £119 million of investment 
and trading properties that were not secured against the Group’s borrowings.

Liquidity and interest risk tables
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative )nancial 
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash *ows of )nancial liabilities 
based on the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest 
and principal cash *ows. The following table details the Group’s liquidity analysis for its derivative 
)nancial instruments. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted net cash in*ows/
(out*ows) on the derivative instruments that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross out*ows 
on those derivatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable or receivable is not )xed, 
the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the interest and foreign currency rates as at 
the reporting date.

Group Less than One to Two to More than 
 one year two years )ve years )ve years Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

2012     
Borrowings (4,265) (127,345) (303,162) (6,865) (441,637)
Interest on borrowings (8,704) (8,318) (7,638) (1,182) (25,842)
Obligations under )nance leases (314) (314) (942) (2,736) (4,306)
Interest rate swaps (5,076) (4,042) (1,139) - (10,257)
Payables and accruals (36,830) - - - (36,830)
  (55,189) (140,019) (312,881) (10,783) (518,872)
2011     
Borrowings (3,588) (94,286) (360,788) (8,316) (466,978)
Interest on borrowings (13,005) (11,447) (12,471) (749) (37,672)
Obligations under )nance leases (322) (322) (967) (3,130) (4,741)
Interest rate swaps (3,599) (2,826) (1,907) - (8,332)
Payables and accruals (14,435) - - - (14,435)
  (34,949) (108,881) (376,133) (12,195) (532,158)

Company Less than One to Two to More than 
 one year two years )ve years )ve years Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

2012     
Interest rate swaps (1,410) (376) - - (1,786)
Payables and accruals (122,182) - - - (122,182)
  (123,592) (376) - - (123,968)
2011     
Interest rate swaps (755) (755) (177) - (1,687)
Payables and accruals (69,756) - - - (69,756)
  (70,511) (755) (177) - (71,443)
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Annual Report and the 
audited )nancial statements of the Company and 
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012. The 
Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 81 and 
82 forms part of this report. 

Principal Activities 
The Company is the parent company of a Group whose 
principal activities comprise property investment, 
development, management and associated business, 
focussing on industrial property investments in 
Continental Europe and the UK, although it will also 
seek to pro)t from opportunistic acquisitions in other 
property sectors both in the UK and abroad. 

The subsidiary undertakings principally a(ecting the 
pro)ts or net assets of the Group in the year are listed in 
note 17 to the )nancial statements.

Business Review 
The Group’s focus is on UK and Continental European 
industrial investments which in the opinion of the Board 
have high yields along with cheap )nancing costs. To 
date these investments have been in the UK, Belgium, 
France, Germany and the Netherlands. A smaller part 
of the Group’s activity is dedicated to opportunistic 
property investment opportunities which to date have 

included land and residential investments. More detailed 
information about the Group’s business, activities and 
)nancial performance is incorporated into this report by 
reference and can be found in the Chairman’s Statement, 
the Joint Chief Executives’ Review and the Finance 
Review on pages 6 to 22.

There are no further matters to report under section 417 
of the Companies Act 2006. 

Results 
The results for the year ended 31 December 2012 are 
shown in the income statement on page 23 of the 
)nancial statements. The pre-tax pro)t for the year 
ended 31 December 2012 was £46.2 million (2011: £8.9 
million) and the net assets are shown in the balance 
sheet as £516.4 million (2011: £509.4 million). The diluted 
EPRA NAV per share was 83p (2011: 82p). In the Directors’ 
view the Normalised Income Pro)t, Normalised Total 
Pro)t and diluted EPRA NAV growth are the most 
appropriate performance measures for the Group.

Key Performance Indicators 
The Directors consider the following to be key 
performance indicators (KPIs), as disclosed in the 
Chairman’s Statement and Joint Chief Executives’ 
Review:

Key performance indicator 2012 2011

Normalised Income Pro)t £30.8m £25.7m

Normalised Total Pro)t £34.3m £34.2m

Net asset value (NAV) (per share) 81p 80p

EPRA NAV (per share) 83p 82p

Annualised rental income £71.8m £66.1m

Net debt to value 38.6% 38.7%

Dividend (per share) 4.5p 4.0p

Yield 8.5% 8.4%

Occupancy 82% 81%



72 HANSTEEN HOLDINGS PLC

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dividend 
For the year ended 31 December 2012, an interim 
dividend of 1.8p per share was paid on 22 November 2012, 
of which £6,133,000 was attributable to PIDs. The second 
dividend of 2.7p per share will be payable on 22 May 2013 
to shareholders on the register on 26 April 2013.

Post Balance Sheet Events
The UK Government has announced that UK Corporation 
Tax rates will fall over the period to 1 April 2014 from the 
current rate of 24% to 22%. The impact of the proposed 
rate change is not material to the Group.

On 27 December 2012 the Company announced that it 
had exchanged contracts with The Industrial Trust to 
acquire a portfolio of multi-let industrial estates, for 
£60.0 million gross (£56.8 million net), to be satis)ed 
from existing cash resources and debt via a new 
borrowing facility. The portfolio, which forms part of 
The Industrial Trust comprises 32 estates, totalling 1.6 
million sq ft, located across the UK. The acquisition was 
completed in January 2013.

Financial Instruments  
and Risk Management 
The Board agrees and reviews policies and )nancial 
instruments for risk management. Further information 
on )nancial instruments is contained in note 34 to the 
)nancial statements.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties 
Risk management is an important part of the Group’s 
system of internal controls. Senior management 
sta( and the Board regularly consider the signi)cant 
risks, which it believes are facing the Group, identify 
appropriate controls and if necessary instigate action 
to improve those controls. There will always be some 
risk when undertaking property investments but the 
control process is aimed at mitigating and minimising 
these risks where possible. The key risks identi)ed by the 
Board, the steps taken to mitigate them and additional 
commentary is as follows:

•  Changes in the general economic environment 
exposes the Group to a number of risks including 
falls in the value of its property investments, loss of 
rental income and increased vacant property costs 
due to the failure of tenants to renew or extend 
leases as well as the potential for tenants to become 
bankrupt. The Board believes these risks are 

reduced due to its policy of assembling a portfolio 
with a wide spread of di(erent tenancies in terms 
of actual tenants, industry type and geographical 
location as well as undertaking thorough due 
diligence on acquisitions. The level of exposure to 
individual tenants is regularly monitored to ensure 
they are within manageable limits. Rent deposits or 
bank guarantees are requested where appropriate 
to mitigate against the e(ect of tenant defaults. 
Where possible, purchases are achieved at low 
capital values and with due investigation of tenant 
)nances.

•  Over-borrowing by the Group, insu'cient credit 
facilities, signi)cant interest rate increases or 
facility covenant breaches represents a risk to 
the Group. In response to these risks Hansteen 
maintains a prudent approach to its borrowing 
levels by seeking to maintain headroom within its 
debt facilities. The Board actively monitors current 
debt and equity levels as well as considering the 
future levels of debt and equity required to sustain 
the business. Loan covenants are monitored and 
compliance certi)cates are prepared on a regular 
basis. For all money borrowed consideration 
is given to procuring the appropriate hedging 
instruments to protect against increases in interest 
rates.

•  By investing in property in mainland Europe the 
Group is exposed to a foreign currency exchange 
rate risk. In response to this risk the Group’s 
borrowings in Europe are in Euro denominated 
loan facilities and therefore, to the extent that 
investments are )nanced by debt, a self hedging 
mechanism is in place. In relation to the equity 
element of the Group’s Euro investments the Board 
monitors the level of exposure on a regular basis 
and considers the level and timing of when to take 
out the appropriate hedging instruments to cover 
this exposure. There is also a risk that one or more 
of the countries that the Group operates in leaves 
the Euro which may a(ect the nature of the Group’s 
loans and derivatives or introduce new volatility 
and currency exposures for the Group to manage.

•  In addition to the need to act as a responsible 
landlord there may be occasions when pollution 
on a site owned by a property investment 
company becomes its responsibility. Each 
acquisition undertaken by the Group includes an 
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environmental report from a specialist consultancy. 
These reports may highlight the need for further 
investigation and in some cases remediation. The 
Group’s policy is then to either undertake such 
investigations or remediation or potentially reject 
the purchase as no longer viable.

•  Loss of REIT status and payment of additional 
Corporation Tax would arise from a breach 
of REIT compliance requirements. Breach of 
certain limits imposed by REIT legislation may 
be mitigated through regular review of the 
Group’s actual and forecast performance against 
REIT regime requirements. Management have 
su'cient discretion to manage and meet the REIT 
requirements and apply mitigating actions where 
required. 

Going Concern 
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors 
likely to a(ect its future development, performance and 
position as well as the )nancial position of the Group, its 
cash *ows, liquidity position and the borrowing facilities 
are described in the Joint Chief Executives’ Review and 
the Finance Review on pages 10 to 22. In addition note 
34 to the )nancial statements includes the Group’s 
objectives, policies and processes for managing its 
capital; its )nancial risk management objectives; details 
of its )nancial instruments and hedging activities; and 
its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The Group has a good debt maturity pro)le with long-
term funding in place. The current economic conditions 
have created uncertainty as to the principal risks and 
uncertainties facing the Group as noted above. In light 
of these risks the Group has considered its forecast cash 
*ows and forecast covenant compliance taking into 
account:

•  the impact on the various loan covenants of further 
reductions in the property valuations, decline in 
rental income and increase in interest rates; and

•  the potential impacts of the current economic 
uncertainty over the Group’s operating cash 
*ow generation, including tenancy failures and 
increased vacancies.

These forecasts show that the Group has su'cient 
headroom and available )nance to manage its business 
risks successfully despite the current uncertain 

economic outlook. Based on this assessment, the 
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the 
Company and the Group have adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern 
basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts.

Share Capital 
Details of the issued share capital, together with details 
of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital 
during the year are shown in note 28. The Company 
has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to 
)xed income. Each share carries the right to one vote at 
general meetings of the Company. 

There are no speci)c restrictions on the size of a holding 
nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed 
by the general provisions of the Articles of Association 
and prevailing legislation. The Directors are not aware 
of any agreements between holders of the Company’s 
shares that may result in restrictions on the transfer of 
securities or on voting rights. 

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 31. 

No person has any special rights of control over the 
Company’s share capital and all issued shares are fully 
paid.

Directors and their Interests 
The Directors who served throughout the year 
are detailed on page 67 to 69. With regard to the 
appointment and replacement of Directors, the Company 
is governed by its Articles of Association, the Companies 
Acts and related legislation. The Articles themselves may 
be amended by special resolution of the shareholders. 

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code 
all the Directors will retire and o(er themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 
Their biographies can be found in the Notice of Meeting 
for the Annual General Meeting.

There are no speci)c restrictions on the size of a holding 
nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by 
the general provisions of the Articles of Association and 
prevailing legislation
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The bene)cial interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company are as follows:

 Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 
 of 10p each at of 10p each at 
 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

Morgan Jones 4,500,000 4,500,000

Ian Watson 4,500,000 4,500,000

Richard Lowes 704,107 704,107

James Hambro 375,000 375,000

Stephen Gee 300,000 300,000

Richard Mully 475,800 475,800*

Richard Cotton 300,000 300,000

Humphrey Price 200,000 200,000

 11,354,907 11,354,907

*  An error in previous reporting was identi)ed in the year. On 18 November 2008, Richard Mully acquired 75,800 ordinary 
shares and not the 75,000 ordinary shares previously reported and therefore his aggregate shareholding is 475,800.

None of the Directors had any interests in any material 
contract during the year relating to the business of the 
Group. There have been no changes to the Directors’ 
interests subsequent to the year end. 

Subject to the Company’s Memorandum of Association, 
the Articles, any legislation and any directions given 
by special resolution, the business of the Company 
will be managed by the Directors, who may exercise 
all the powers of the Company, whether relating to the 
management of the business of the Company or not. In 
particular, the Board may exercise all the powers of the 
Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge 
any of its undertakings, property, assets and uncalled 
capital and to issue debentures and other securities and 
give security for any debt, liability or obligation of the 
Company to any third party.

Directors’ Indemnities 
The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity 
provisions for the bene)t of its Directors which were 
made during the year and remain in force at the date of 
this report.

Substantial Interests  
in the Share Capital of the Company 
As at 7 March 2013, the Company had been noti)ed, in 
accordance with the UK Listing Authority’s Disclosure 
Rules and Transparency Rules, that the following 
shareholders held, or were bene)cially interested in, 
3% or more of the voting rights in the Company’s issued 
share capital:
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 No. of ordinary 
 shares held Percentage

Aberforth Partners 19,675,254  3.08%

Threadneedle Investments 23,671,834  3.71%

Legal & General Investment Management 23,975,901  3.75%

M&G Investment Management 28,878,437  4.52%

Baillie Gi(ord 30,500,699  4.77%

Lloyds Banking Group - Scottish Widows Investment Partnership 33,222,741  5.20%

Ru(er 36,485,298  5.71%

Jupiter Asset Management  37,509,055  5.87%

BlackRock  45,015,005  7.05%

Cazenove Capital Management 67,835,102  10.62%

 346,769,326  54.28%

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Payment Policy for Creditors 
The Group’s policy is to settle all agreed liabilities within 
the terms established with suppliers. At 31 December 
2012 there was 17 days’ purchases outstanding (2011: one 
day’s) in respect of the Company’s trade creditors. 

Charitable and Political Donations
 During the year, the Group made a charitable donation 
of £20,000 to the property industry charity LandAid 
(total charitable donations in 2011: £nil). LandAid uses 
the collective resources, expertise and in*uence of the 
property industry to help disadvantaged young people 
in the UK access the buildings, skills and opportunities 
they need to achieve their potential. Through grant 
awards and pro bono support, LandAid brings together 
charitable giving from across the industry to make a real 
di(erence to young lives.

There were no political donations in the year (2011: £nil).

Auditors 
So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant 
audit information (as de)ned by Section 418 of the 
Companies Act 2006) of which the Company’s auditors 
are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps 
that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make 
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to 
establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that 
information.

This con)rmation is given and should be interpreted in 
accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies 
Act 2006.

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue 
in o'ce as auditors and a resolution to reappoint them 
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf 
of the Board

Michaella Hornbuckle 
Company Secretary

8 March 2013
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual 
Report and the -nancial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare )nancial 
statements for each )nancial year. Under that law the 
Directors are required to prepare the group )nancial 
statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European 
Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have 
also chosen to prepare the parent Company )nancial 
statements under IFRSs as adopted by the EU. Under 
company law the Directors must not approve the 
accounts unless they are satis)ed that they give a true 
and fair view of the state of a(airs of the Company and 
of the pro)t or loss of the Company for that period. In 
preparing these )nancial statements, International 
Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:

•  properly select and apply accounting policies;

•  present information, including accounting policies, 
in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, 
comparable and understandable information; 

•  provide additional disclosures when compliance 
with the speci)c requirements in IFRSs are 
insu'cient to enable users to understand the 
impact of particular transactions, other events and 
conditions on the entity’s )nancial position and 
)nancial performance; and

•  make an assessment of the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate 
accounting records that are su'cient to show and 
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the )nancial position 
of the Company and enable them to ensure that the 
)nancial statements comply with the Companies Act 
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and 
integrity of the corporate and )nancial information 
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in 
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of )nancial statements may di(er from 
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement 
We con)rm that to the best of our knowledge:

•  the )nancial statements, prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards, 
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, 
)nancial position and pro)t or loss of the Company 
and the undertakings included in the consolidation 
taken as a whole; and

•  the Chairman’s Statement, the Joint Chief 
Executives’ Review and the Finance Review, which 
are incorporated into the Directors’ Report, include 
a fair review of the development and performance 
of the business and the position of the Company 
and the undertakings included in the consolidation 
taken as a whole, together with a description of the 
principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

By order of the Board 

Ian Watson and Morgan Jones  
Joint Chief Executives

8 March 2013

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
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We have audited the )nancial statements of Hansteen 
Holdings PLC for the year ended 31 December 2012 
which comprise the consolidated income statement, 
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, 
the Group and Company balance sheets, the Group and 
Company statements of changes in equity, the Group 
and Company cash *ow statements and the related 
notes 1 to 34. The )nancial reporting framework that 
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 
as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the 
parent company )nancial statements, as applied in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 
2006.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, 
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of 
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s 
members those matters we are required to state to them 
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company 
and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit 
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities  
of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities 
Statement, the Directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the )nancial statements and for being 
satis)ed that they give a true and fair view. Our 
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on 
the )nancial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with 
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for 
Auditors.

Scope of the audit  
of the ,nancial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the )nancial statements su'cient to 
give reasonable assurance that the )nancial statements 
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by 
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether 
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s 
and the parent Company’s circumstances and have 
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; 
the reasonableness of signi)cant accounting estimates 
made by the Directors; and the overall presentation of 
the )nancial statements. In addition, we read all the 
)nancial and non-)nancial information in the Annual 
Report to identify material inconsistencies with the 
audited )nancial statements. If we become aware of any 
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we 
consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on ,nancial statements
In our opinion:

•  the )nancial statements give a true and fair view of 
the state of the Group’s and of the parent Company’s 
a(airs as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group’s 
pro)t for the year then ended;

•  the Group )nancial statements have been properly 
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by 
the European Union;

•  the parent Company )nancial statements have 
been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as 
adopted by the European Union and as applied in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act 2006; and

•  the )nancial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group 
)nancial statements, Article 4 of the IAS 
Regulation.

Independent Auditor’s Report 
to the members of Hansteen Holdings PLC
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Opinion on other matters prescribed  
by the Companies Act !""-
In our opinion:

•  the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be 
audited has been properly prepared in accordance 
with the Companies Act 2006; and

•  the information given in the Directors’ Report 
for the )nancial year for which the )nancial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the 
)nancial statements.

Matters on which we are required  
to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report 
to you if, in our opinion:

•  adequate accounting records have not been kept 
by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our 
audit have not been received from branches not 
visited by us; or

•  the parent Company )nancial statements and the 
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be 
audited are not in agreement with the accounting 
records and returns; or

•  certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration 
speci)ed by law are not made; or

•  we have not received all the information and 
explanations we require for our audit.

 

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review:

•  the Directors’ statement, contained within the 
Directors’ Report, in relation to going concern; 

•  the part of the Corporate Governance Statement 
relating to the Company’s compliance with the nine 
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code 
speci)ed for our review; and

•  certain elements of the report to shareholders by 
the Board on Directors’ remuneration.

Jason Davies (Senior statutory auditor)  
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor,  
Reading, United Kingdom, 

8 March 2013

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Corporate Governance

INTRODUCTION BY THE CHAIRMAN

Governance overview
The division of responsibilities between my role as 
Non-Executive Chairman, and the roles of the Joint Chief 
Executives, is clearly de)ned, set out in writing and 
reviewed annually by the Board. I am responsible for the 
leadership and e(ective working of the Board, ensuring 
that all members of the Board, including in particular 
the Non-Executive Directors, have an opportunity to 
contribute e(ectively, and that there is appropriate and 
timely communication with shareholders.

The Board has delegated executive responsibility for 
running the Group to the Joint Chief Executives who are 
responsible for the strategic direction and operational 
and )nancial performance of the Group. There is a 
schedule of matters reserved for the Board’s decision and 
the Board meets at least )ve times a year with ad hoc 
meetings as required.

Diversity
The Board is keen to ensure that Hansteen bene)ts from 
the highest quality Board comprising individuals with 
an appropriate balance of skills and experience. We 
are proud to be a diverse business at all levels. As at the 
date of this report, female employees account for 43% 
of the total Hansteen workforce with 73% of our female 
employees holding a professional quali)cation.

Hansteen will continue to ensure that all appointments 
throughout the business are made on merit against 
objective criteria. 

Board evaluation
The annual evaluation of the Board, its Committees and 
each individual Director was undertaken at the end of 
2012.  The results focused on improving the processes 
and practices of Board administration that were put in 
place upon our elevation to the FTSE 250 in 2011. 

The evaluation concluded that the performance of the 
Board, its Committees and each individual Director was 
and remains e(ective and that all Directors demonstrate 
full commitment in their respective roles.  As a result of 
one of the )ndings of both the 2011 and 2012 evaluations, 
the Board continued to look at succession planning at 
both Board and Senior Management Team level during 
the year and this work will be ongoing in 2013.

The 2013 Board evaluation will be externally facilitated as 
is required by the 2010 UK Corporate Governance Code 
and the process for appointing the facilitator with which 
the Board decides to work will be set out in the Annual 
Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 
2013. 

James Hambro 
Chairman

8 March 2013
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A summary of the system of governance adopted by 
the Company follows.

The Company applied the main principles of the UK 
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) published by 
the Financial Reporting Council in June 2012 throughout 
the year with the exception of the composition of the 
Remuneration Committee.  The Company recognises 
that only having two independent Non-Executive 
Directors on the Remuneration Committee does not 
comply with the provisions of the Code however, we 
believe that for a Company with only 70 employees, as 
at 31 December 2012, two independent Non-Executive 
Directors, one of whom chairs the meeting, together with 
the Non-Executive Chairman (considered independent 
on appointment) is an appropriate composition. 

Given the size of the Group and the centralised nature 
of its operations which are under the direct supervision 
of management, the Committee does not believe that an 
internal audit function is merited at this time but will 
continue to monitor this position. 

The Company complies with the Corporate Governance 
Statement requirements pursuant to the FSA’s Disclosure 
and Transparency Rules by virtue of the information 
included in this Corporate Governance section of the 
Annual Report and Accounts together with information 
contained in the Directors’ Report on pages 71 to 75 and 
in the Report of the Remuneration Committee on pages 
86 to 95. 

The Board is committed to high standards of risk 
management and internal control and, as such, supports 
the principles of the Code. The way in which it applies 
these principles is set out below and in the Report of the 
Remuneration Committee on pages 86 to 95

Relations with shareholders
The Executive Directors regularly meet with institutional 
shareholders and analysts. Private investors are also 
encouraged to meet with the Board and to participate in 
the Annual General Meeting. The Chairmen of the Audit, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committees are available 
to answer questions, where appropriate, at the Annual 
General Meeting.

The Board of Directors
Details of the Directors are set out on page 67 to 69. 
The Board consists of )ve independent Non-Executive 
Directors, including the Chairman, and three Executive 
Directors. The Board has determined that all the Non-
Executive Directors are independent. In determining 
the independence of Stephen Gee, the Board considered 
whether his previous role as a Non-Executive Director of 
Ashtenne Holdings plc might a(ect his independence. 
The Board concluded that his independence of character 
and judgement are not compromised based on a number 
of factors, including his experience and knowledge, the 
signi)cant changes in the economic and commercial 
environment since his tenure at Ashtenne, and the 
fact that he has always exercised strong independent 
judgment. The roles and responsibilities of the 
Chairman, Executive Directors and Non-Executive 
Directors are clearly de)ned. The Board is satis)ed 
that the Non-Executive Directors, each of whom is 
independent from management and has no commercial 
or other connection with the Company, are able to 
exercise independent judgement. The appointment of 
new Directors is a matter for the Board as a whole. The 
Board is responsible to shareholders of the Company for 
the strategy and future development of the Group and 
the e'cient management of its resources. As a result, the 
Board has a schedule of matters reserved for its decision, 
which includes approval of annual budgets, acquisition 
and divestment policy, approval of major capital projects, 
the raising of )nance and management policies. 
The Board is supplied, in a timely fashion, with the 
information it needs to enable it to discharge its duties. 
The Board is also kept informed of changes in relevant 
legislation and changing commercial risks, and each 
Director has access to independent professional advice 
and the advice and services of the Company Secretary. In 
accordance with the provisions of the Code, all Directors 
will submit themselves for re-election annually.

UK Corporate Governance Code
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UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The schedule below sets out the number of principal Board and Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 
December 2012 together with individual attendance by Board Members at those meetings.

   Audit Nomination Remuneration 
 Board  Committee Committee Committee

James Hambro 7  - 1 3

Morgan Jones 7  -  1 -

Ian Watson 7  - 1 -

Richard Lowes 7  - - -

Stephen Gee 7  3 1 -

Richard Mully 6  3 1 3

Richard Cotton 7  - 1 3

Humphrey Price 7  3 1 -

Number of meetings during the year 7  3 1 3

The Board has the following standing Committees:

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises Stephen Gee 
(Chairman), Richard Mully and Humphrey Price. Senior 
representatives of the external auditors, Executive 
Directors and senior management may be invited to 
attend the meetings. The Committee’s report, including 
details of its responsibilities, is set out on pages 83 to 85.

Nomination Committee
The composition of the Nomination Committee was 
reviewed in November 2012 and now comprises, James 
Hambro (who took over the Chairmanship of the 
Committee from Humphrey Price), Humphrey Price, 
Richard Cotton, Richard Mully, and any one of the Joint 
Chief Executives, Morgan Jones and Ian Watson, at any 

one time. The Committee is responsible for reviewing 
the structure, size and composition of the Board and for 
making recommendations in respect of any changes and 
appointments. 

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises Richard 
Cotton (Chairman), James Hambro and Richard Mully. 
It is responsible for making recommendations to the 
Board on all aspects of remuneration policy for Executive 
Directors. The Committee’s report is set out on pages 86 
to 95.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, 
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are 
available on the Company’s website  
www.hansteen.co.uk.
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Composition of the Committee
The Board has established an Audit Committee (the 
“Committee”) of three independent Non-Executive 
Directors as required by the 2010 UK Corporate 
Governance Code (the “Code”). Stephen Gee is Chairman 
of the Committee with Richard Mully and Humphrey 
Price as the other members. Humphrey Price is the 
Committee member identi)ed as having recent and 
relevant )nancial experience as required by the Code 
although all the members of the Committee have 
extensive )nancial experience. No members of the 
Committee have links with the Company’s external 
auditors.  

Senior representatives of the external auditors, Executive 
Directors and senior management may be invited to 
attend the meetings at the Committee’s discretion.

The Company believes the Committee contains the right 
balance of knowledge, skill and experience to support 
the business in achieving its strategy.

The Committee meets regularly during the year aligned 
to the )nancial reporting timetable and during 2012 
the Committee met three times with all members in 
attendance on each occasion. 

Responsibilities of the Committee
The Committee’s principle responsibilities include: 

•  ensuring that management has systems and 
procedures in place to ensure the integrity of 
)nancial information;

•  developing and implementing the policy for the 
provision of non-audit services by the auditors; 

•  maintaining an appropriate relationship with 
the Group’s external auditors, reviewing the 
e(ectiveness, objectivity and independence of the 
external auditors, considering both the scope of 
their work and the fees paid to them for audit and 
non-audit services;

•  considering all matters relating to the 
recommendation for appointment, re-
appointment, remuneration and terms of 
engagement of the Group’s external auditors; 

•  monitoring the Group’s internal audit 
requirements, internal )nancial controls and the 
audit process; 

•  reviewing the interim and full year )nancial 
statements prior to their submission to the Board, 
applying the Group’s accounting policies and any 
changes to )nancial reporting requirements; and

•  undertaking a review of the Group’s risks on  
a bi-annual basis.

The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee, 
unchanged from the date of adoption following a review 
during the year, are available on the Company’s website 
www.hansteen.co.uk.

During 2012 the Committee’s agenda also included a 
review of the Group’s treasury position. 

External Auditors
The Group’s external auditors are Deloitte LLP. The audit 
partner responsible for the Group’s audit matters is 
changed every )ve years in accordance with the Ethical 
Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. 
In forming their opinion on the independence and 
objectivity of the external auditors, the Committee takes 
into account the safeguards operating within Deloitte. 
Under the Company’s policy governing the provision of 
non-audit services by the external auditors, they may not 
provide a service which places them in a position where 
they may be required to audit their own work.

Speci)cally, they are precluded from providing services 
relating to bookkeeping or other services relating 
to accounting records or )nancial statements of the 
Group, )nancial information system design and 

Report of the Audit Committee
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implementation, appraisal or evaluation services, 
actuarial services, any management functions, 
investment banking services, legal services unrelated 
to the audit, remuneration related services or advocacy 
services. 

To ful)l its responsibilities regarding the external 
auditors, the Committee reviewed:

•  the scope of the audit as set out in the external 
auditor’s engagement letter;

•  the external auditor’s overall work plan;

•  the external auditor’s fee proposal;

•  a report from the external auditors describing their 
arrangements to ensure objectivity and to identify, 
report and manage any con*icts of interest; and,

•  the extent of non-audit services provided by the 
external auditors to ensure that they are not placed 
in a position to audit their own work.

During 2012, services provided by Deloitte and their 
associates to the Group, in addition to acting as external 
auditors, included tax advice in respect of UK and 
overseas income tax, VAT and property tax.

 Where non-audit services are provided, the fees are 
based on the work undertaken and are not success 
related. Consideration is given to the nature of and 
remuneration received for other services provided 
by Deloitte to the Group and con)rmation is sought 
from them that the fee payable for the annual audit is 
adequate to enable them to perform their obligations in 
accordance with the scope of the audit.  The Committee 
has fully evaluated all non audit work undertaken by 
Deloitte during the year against its policy and remains 
comfortable that it is appropriate and the fees justi)ed.

Payments made by the Group for audit and non-audit 
fees for the year are disclosed on page 42.

The Committee has reviewed the brie)ng paper on 
e(ective communication between audit committees 
and external auditors issued by the Auditing Practices 
Board.  Having considered the recommendations of the 
brie)ng paper in respect of the external auditors, the 
Committee has concluded that the relationship with the 
external auditors meets the recommendations and the 

Committee remains satis)ed with their independence 
and e(ectiveness. Accordingly, to date, it has not 
considered it necessary to require Deloitte to re-tender 
for the audit work, although this will be reviewed 
periodically, to ensure that the audit remains high quality 
and e(ective. The external auditors are required to rotate 
audit partners responsible for the Group audit every 
)ve years and the current lead audit partner has been in 
place for two years. There are no contractual obligations 
restricting the Group’s choice of external auditor. 

The Committee meets regularly with the external auditor 
without management being present.

Internal Control
An ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and 
managing the most signi)cant risks faced by the Group 
has been in place throughout the year and up to the date 
of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. That 
process which accords with the Turnbull guidance and 
the Board’s review of that process is set out below. 

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the 
Group’s system of internal controls, including the review 
of its e(ectiveness and suitable monitoring procedures, 
in order to safeguard shareholders’ investment and 
the assets of the Group as well as the integrity of its 
accounting records and provide reliable information 
for use within the business and for publication. The 
Directors acknowledge that such a system is designed 
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure 
to achieve business objectives and can provide only 
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material 
misstatement or loss. 

The Directors have reviewed, as part of the year-end 
procedures, the e(ectiveness of the system of internal 
control for the period under review and up to the 
date of this report, the key element of which is a risk 
management process whereby key risks to achieving our 
objectives and strategy as well as related controls and 
monitoring procedures in respect of those controls are 
identi)ed in a risk register. The risk register is reviewed 
bi-annually and updated where appropriate and reports 
received from the Executive on control procedures, and 
any areas for improvement are agreed for subsequent 
action.
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This process is supported by:

•  Management structure  
There is a clear organisational structure with well-
de)ned lines of reporting and responsibility.

•  Financial reporting  
There are reporting disciplines including 
performance monitoring and pro)t and cash 
forecasting.

•  Investment appraisal  
The Group has a clearly de)ned framework 
for capital and development expenditure and 
subsequent on-going appraisals.

•  In addition, the key internal controls include 
regular meetings of the Board and Committee 
whose overall responsibilities are set out above.

During the course of its reviews of the system of internal 
control, the Board has not identi)ed nor been advised 
of any failings or weaknesses which it has determined 
to be signi)cant. Therefore a con)rmation in respect of 
necessary actions has not been considered appropriate.

Stephen Gee 
Chairman of the Audit Committee

8 March 2013
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Introduction
This report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large and 
Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and 
Reports) Regulations 2008 and meets the relevant 
requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial 
Services Authority and the UK Corporate Governance 
Code (the “Code”).  An ordinary resolution to approve the 
report will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting 
on 10 June 2013 (the “AGM”).      

Committee Membership
During the year the Committee comprised Richard 
Cotton (Chairman) and Richard Mully, both of whom 
are considered independent by the Board, and James 
Hambro, Chairman of the Board, who was considered to 
be independent on his appointment as Chairman.  The 
Committee meets regularly and no less than twice a 
year and no member of the Committee has any personal 
)nancial interest, other than as a shareholder, in the 
matters decided.  The Committee members have no 
con*icts of interest arising from cross-directorships 
and none of the Committee members participate in 
any bonus scheme, pension plan, share awards or any 
employee share schemes.  Committee members have no 
day-to-day involvement in the running of the Company.  
Details of attendance at meetings can be found in the 
Corporate Governance Report.

Remit of the Committee
The role of the Committee is to determine and 
recommend to the Board the speci)c pay and bene)ts 
packages for the Executive Directors and also to 
recommend and monitor the structure and level of pay 
and bene)ts for certain senior management posts below 
Board level.  In addition, the Committee also administers 
the Company’s Performance Share Plan, 2005 Share 
Option Scheme and Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan.

The Committee’s terms of reference were reviewed 
during the year with reference to the Code and the 
best practice guidelines published by the Institute 
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and are 

available on the Company’s website at  
www.hansteen.co.uk.

The Committee seeks external advice where necessary 
to assist it where appropriate. The Committee consulted 
AON Hewitt during the year and approved fees to them 
of £5,000 for remuneration advice, excluding VAT. 
AON Hewitt provided no other services to the Company 
during the year and the Committee remains satis)ed 
that their advice is both independent and objective.  The 
Committee seeks internal support from the Executive 
Directors and the Company Secretary (who acts as 
Secretary to the Committee) where necessary, and they 
may all attend Committee meetings by invitation, but 
are not present for any discussions that relate directly to 
their own remuneration. 

Committee Focus 
During the year, the Committee carried out the following 
activities:

•  Review of the achievement of annual bonus scheme 
performance measures against target.

•  Approval of the Directors’ Remuneration Report for 
the year ended 31 December 2011.

•  Review of the )nal outcome of AGM voting for the 
Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 
31 December 2011 and consideration of shareholder 
feedback.

•  Consideration of market trends in executive 
remuneration and corporate governance.

•  Consideration of Executive Director shareholding 
guidelines; 

•  Consideration of a clawback in relation to fraud or 
gross misrepresentation in relation to bonus awards

•  Agreeing the design of and targets for the annual 
bonus scheme for the year ended 31 December 2013; 
and

•  Review of Committee terms of reference and 
performance during the year.

Report of the Remuneration Committee



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2012  87

Remuneration Policy for Executives
In determining an appropriate remuneration policy 
the Committee’s objective is to support the business 
strategy of the Company and to promote shareholder 
value creation whilst ensuring it is able to attract, 
retain and motivate experienced and high-calibre 
individuals, who are committed to achieving consistently 
high performance in its sector. It is the Committee’s 
responsibility to ensure that the Company’s Executive 
Directors and senior management are fairly and 
responsibly rewarded for their individual contributions 
to the Company’s overall performance. In determining 
the policy, the Committee takes into account, for 
benchmarking purposes, the remuneration packages 
of Executive Directors and senior management in 
other comparable quoted companies as well as the 
Group’s overall )nancial performance and the pay and 
employment conditions of the Group’s employees.  

The Company’s policy is that a substantial proportion of 
the remuneration of the Executive Directors should be 
performance-related and the Committee is committed to 
principles of accountability and transparency to ensure 
that remuneration arrangements demonstrate a clear link 
between performance and reward.  

The key elements of the 2013 remuneration package for 
Executive Directors are:

•  Fixed pay/bene)ts – basic annual salary and 
bene)ts, pension contributions and health 
insurance cover

•  Variable annual pay – cash and/or share based bonus 
payments

•  Variable long term pay – share based long-term 
incentives

The Group’s remuneration policy can be summarised as 
follows:

Remuneration Policy Report
There follows a more detailed explanation of each of these 
components and the table on page 90 summarises the 
main components of the Group’s remuneration policy for 
Executive Directors for 2013 and highlights changes made 
to the policy for 2013.

Base salaries and bene,ts
Base salaries for Executive Directors are reviewed by 
the Committee, normally annually, having regard to 
competitive market practice and also to Group and 
individual performance and scope of responsibility. 
Following the review the base salaries of the Joint Chief 
Executives, Morgan Jones and Ian Watson, were increased 
to £395,000 per annum for 2013 (from £375,000 in 2012, 
an increase of 5.3%). The Finance Director, Richard 
Lowes, was awarded a 2.6% salary increase from £243,750 
per annum to £250,000 per annum.

Current bene)ts include a company car allowance, 
medical insurance and life assurance cover and 
permanent health insurance cover.    

Annual performance related bonus
The Executive Directors are entitled to a performance-
related bonus each year based on criteria set annually by 
the Committee to reward excellent )nancial performance 
and the achievement of strategic objectives that would 
meet the expectations of investors as at the beginning 
of the year.  These performance-related bonus awards 
are subject to a clawback in relation to fraud or gross 
misrepresentation.

Fixed remuneration

Base salary

Bene)ts

Pension

Performance related remuneration

 Short-term Long-term

 Annual bonus scheme Founder LTIP*

  Performance Share Plan

*Joint Chief Executive O"cers only

REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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As reported in the 2011 Annual Report and Accounts, 
the maximum potential bonus for the year ended 31 
December 2012 for the Joint Chief Executives remained 
at 100% of salary and following the introduction of the 

Performance Share Plan will be reduced to 75% in 2013. 
The maximum potential bonus for the Finance Director 
in 2012 was set at 75% of salary and this will remain 
unchanged in 2013.

The 2012 bonus award performance measures were measured against the following targets:

Target

Financial Targets  
(up to 25% of award)

 

Occupancy Target  
(up to 25% of award)

 
Corporate Target  
(up to 25% of award)

 

Discretionary Element  
(up to 25% of award)

Performance Measure

•  Normalised Income Pro)t EPS to be at or 
above 4.3p (10%).

•  Normalised Total Pro)t EPS from 4.3p to 
5p (pro-rata) to achieve full award (15%).

•  The target range was a net improvement 
of 27,500 square metres to 55,000 square 
metres (pro-rata).

•  These related to achieving acquisition 
targets, producing a liability strategy 
and securing a reduction in third-party 
letting fees. 

•  This was in respect of overall Company 
performance and included management 
succession planning and e'ciencies in 
the production of management )nancial 
reports.

% Potential Award Granted

Award of 25% of potential granted.

 
 

Award of 25% of potential granted.

 
 
Award of 15% of potential granted.

 
 
 
Award of 18% of potential granted.

In total, the Committee awarded bonuses of 83% of maximum potential.

In 2013, the Board has set new targets for the Executive Directors in line with the Group’s KPI’s and corporate goals.  
The bonus criteria include 4 elements:

Financial Targets (up to 25% of award) •  Normalised Income Pro)t EPS to be at or above 5.0p (10%).

 •  Normalised Total Pro)t EPS from 5.0p to 5.7p (pro-rata) to achieve 
full award (15%).

Occupancy Targets / Cost E'ciencies  • The target range is a net improvement of 50,000 square 
(up to 25% of award)      metres to 100,000 square metres (pro-rata) (12.5%).

 •  Improvement in administrative expenses/rent ratio to 19% - 20% 
(pro-rata) (12.5%)

Corporate Target (up to 25% of award) •  These relate to securing a reduction in third-party letting 
fees, implementing a signi)cant re)nancing and enhancing 
management reporting and )nancial analysis.

Discretionary Element (up to 25% of award) •  Based on overall performance.
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Pensions
Contributions equivalent to 16% of their basic salaries 
were made to the self-administered pension funds 
of the Joint Chief Executives.  As reported in the 2011 
Annual Report and Accounts, Richard Lowes’ pension 
contribution was increased to 16% per annum (2011: 8% 
per annum) and made to his self-administered pension 
fund. 

Performance Share Plan
Following its approval at the 2012 Annual General 
Meeting and as set out in the 2011 Annual Report and 
Accounts, two awards under the Performance Share 
Plan (the “PSP”) were made to the Executive Directors 
and members of the senior management team on 9 July 
2012.  In view of the Joint Chief Executives’ participation 
in the Founder LTIP, their maximum potential award 
was capped at 75% of salary.  Details of the awards to 
Executive Directors are provided on page 94.

The )rst award is subject to performance conditions 
measured over a two year period and a three year vesting 
period while the second award is subject to the same 
performance conditions measured over a three year 
period and a three year vesting period.  

The awards will vest based on two separate performance 
conditions:

•  50% by reference to the Company’s Total 
Shareholder Return ranking relative to a 
Comparator Group over the performance period; 
and

•  50% by reference to the Company’s EPRA Net Asset 
Value ranking relative to a Comparator Group over 
the performance period.

Provision was made in the PSP Rules to cover the event 
that any member of the Comparator Group ceases to 
exist, or its shares cease to be listed in the O'cial List 
of the London Stock Exchange or other recognised 
stock exchange, or it is so changed as to make it, in the 
opinion of the Committee, unsuitable as a member of the 
Comparator Group. 

Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan
As part of the founder arrangements established at IPO 
in 2005, the Joint Chief Executives are entitled to a bonus 
share award dependent on Company performance. The 
bonus payable under the Founder Long-Term Incentive 
Plan (the “Founder LTIP”) will depend on the Company’s 
NAV growth per share exceeding a compound growth 
rate of 10% per annum (the “Target NAV”) in a three year 
period. For the purposes of this scheme, NAV is taken to 
be the fully diluted EPRA NAV (“NAV”) de)nition. To the 
extent that NAV per ordinary share (including dividends 
and other returns to shareholders) exceeds Target NAV 
per share, 12.5% of such excess multiplied by the number 
of ordinary shares in issue will be payable to each of the 
Joint Chief Executives as a bonus. This bonus scheme will 
be repeated to reward performance in each subsequent 
three-year period commencing on 1 January 2013, with 
the relevant dates for determining the )gures to calculate 
the bonus altering to accurately re*ect each three-year 
period.

Any amount payable under the Founder LTIP is to be 
satis)ed in full by the award of ordinary shares of the 
Company to the relevant Joint Chief Executive. The price 
per share to be used when determining the number of 
shares which the Joint Chief Executives are entitled to 
pursuant to the Founder LTIP shall be the average mid-
market quotation for such shares on the Main Market 
for the )rst 20 dealing days immediately following the 
end of the relevant period (being the period ended 31 
December 2012 and thereafter each subsequent three-
year period commencing on 1 January 2013).  In respect 
of each of the two bonus cycles completed since IPO, the 
target NAV has not been achieved and no share awards 
have been made.  The most recent bonus measurement 
period was for the three years to 31 December 2012 and to 
have reached the minimum hurdle given the dividends 
paid in the period, the NAV would have needed to have 
been in excess of 100.3p per share compared to the 83.2p 
per share actually achieved.  For the three year period 
commencing 1 January 2013 the base NAV per share at 1 
January 2013 is 83.2p and the minimum target growth in 
NAV plus dividends is 27.5p per share before any amount 
will become due under the scheme.
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Remuneration Policy - Key Elements

Element of 
remuneration

Purpose and link to 
strategy

Operation Opportunity Performance 
targets

Changes from 2012

Base salary To attract, retain 
and motivate high- 
calibre individuals. 

Reviewed 
annually having 
regard to market 
practice to Group 
and individual 
performance,  
and to scope of 
responsibility.

2012:

M Jones 
£375,000

I Watson 
£375,000

R Lowes 
£243,750

2013:

M Jones 
£395,000

I Watson 
£395,000

R Lowes 
£250,000

None Increase of 5.3% for 
Joint CEOs and 2.6% 
for FD

Annual performance 
related bonus

Reward excellent 
)nancial 
performance and 
achievement of 
strategic objectives.

Reviewed annually 
to ensure continued 
alignment with 
strategy.

2012 (% of salary): 
Joint CEOs 100%

FD: 75%

2013 (% of salary):

All Executives: 75%

Combination 
of )nancial 
targets (25%), 
occupancy target 
(25%), corporate 
target (25%) and 
discretionary 
element (25%)

No change to 
weighting but 
changes to target 
components

Founder LTIP Part of founder 
arrangements 
established at IPO 
to incentivise Joint 
CEOs.

Contractual rights 
operating over 
consecutive rolling 
three year periods  
- current period is 
2013- 2015.

Bonus share awards 
subject to meeting 
performance targets.

NAV growth per 
share in three year 
period must exceed 
compound growth 
of 10% per annum 
(Target NAV).  If 
achieved, 12.5% of 
excess value over 
Target NAV payable 
to each Joint CEO in 
shares.

No change

Performance Share 
Plan

Reward outstanding 
performance and 
ensure alignment 
with shareholders’ 
interests. 

Awards of 
conditional shares 
on annual basis

Annual awards 
subject to maximum 
of 75% of salary 

Combination 
of comparative 
TSR (50%) and 
EPRA NAV over 
performance period 
with vesting in 
three equal annual 
tranches from end of 
performance period

No change

Pension To reward sustained 
contribution. 

Contributions 
to own personal 
pension funds. 

Employer 
contribution of 16% 
of base salary

None No change

Bene)ts To attract and retain 
executives. 

Company car 
allowance, medical 
insurance, life 
assurance and 
permanent health 
insurance.

Full cost of provision 
c. £120,000

None No change
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!""& Share Option Scheme
At the absolute discretion of the Board, the Executive 
Directors (excluding the Joint Chief Executives) may be 
invited to participate in the 2005 Share Option Scheme. 
Currently Richard Lowes is the only Director who holds 
share options, granted to him under the 2005 Share 
Option Scheme before he became a Director, details 
of which are provided on page 95. See also note 31.  
Following the introduction of the Performance Share 
Plan in 2012 it is not intended to issue any further 
options to Executive Directors under the 2005 Share 
Option Scheme.

Shareholding guidelines
The Company has agreed that from the 2013 AGM it will 
introduce a policy of Executive Directors maintaining a 
minimum holding of shares in the Company.

Within three years of their appointment, Executive 
Directors are expected to build, and then maintain, a 
holding of shares in the Company equal to one year’s base 
salary.  

The current shareholdings of all Executive Directors 
currently exceed these requirements by a substantial 
margin.

Service contracts and exit payments
It is the Company’s policy that Executive Directors should 
have rolling contracts providing for a maximum of one 
year’s notice. However, it may be necessary occasionally 
to o(er longer notice periods to new Directors.

Executive E/ective date  Notice period by 
Directors of contract  either Company  
  or Director

Morgan Jones 22 November 2005 not less than 12 months

Ian Watson 22 November 2005 not less than 12 months

Richard Lowes 18 October 2011 not less than 12 months

 
In the event of termination by the Company, the 
Directors’ contracts provide for compensation in lieu of 
notice of an amount equal to the basic salary and other 
contractual entitlements over the immediately preceding 
12 month period and shall be subject to deductions for 
income tax and national insurance contributions as 
appropriate. 

Performance Share Plan leaver provisions were approved 
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in 
2012.  For good leavers awards are generally subject to 
performance and time pro-rating for the vesting period. 
Awards are generally forfeited where departure is for 
another reason such as resignation or termination for 
cause.

Executive Directors are not entitled to accept 
appointments outside the Company without the prior 
written consent of the Board, such consent not to be 
unreasonably withheld.

Remuneration Policy for  
Non-Executive Directors
The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is 
determined by the Board as a whole and within limits 
set out in the Articles of Association with consideration 
being given to the commitment and responsibilities of 
the relevant role and by reference to independent surveys 
of fees paid to Non-Executive Directors of companies 
with comparable market capitalisation.

Having not been reviewed since 2010 it was decided to 
increase the Chairman’s fee from £75,000 to £85,000 
last year. It was also deemed appropriate to award a 
fee of £7,500 per annum to the Chairmen of the Audit 
and Remuneration Committees. This year (as from 1st 
January) the Non-Executive fees have been increased 
by 5% (having, with the exception of the Chairman, 
not been increased since 2010) and a fee of £3,000 per 
annum awarded in respect of individual Committee 
membership. The Senior Independent Director has been 
awarded a fee of £3,000 per annum.

The Non-Executive Directors each have speci)c terms of 
engagement and do not have service contracts with the 
Company.  They do not participate in the, annual bonus 
scheme or long-term incentive schemes and they do not 
receive any other bene)ts. 

Non-Executive E/ective date  Notice period by 
Directors of engagement  either Company  
  or Director

James Hambro 15 November 2005 Not less than 3 months

Stephen Gee 15 November 2005 Not less than 3 months

Richard Mully 1 May 2006 Not less than 3 months

Richard Cotton 18 October 2010 Not less than 3 months

Humphrey Price 18 October 2010 Not less than 3 months
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In accordance with the Code, all the Directors, both 
Executive and Non-Executive, will retire and o(er 
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting. 

Performance graph
In response to the UK Real Estate Investment Trust 
(REIT) legislation, with e(ect from 1 December 2009 
FTSE Group reclassi)ed the Real Estate Sector into the 
FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment Trusts Index and 
the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment & Services 
Index.   The Company converted to a REIT with e(ect 
from 6 October 2009. The following graph compares 
the Company’s total shareholder return (TSR) to a 
composite of the two new FTSE Real Estate indices. TSR 

measures share price growth, with dividends deemed to 
be reinvested on the ex-dividend date. Prior to 6 October 
2009, the index used for comparison is the FTSE All-
Share Real Estate Investment & Services Index (which 
up until that point the Company would have been a 
constituent member of). From 6 October 2009, the 
index used for comparison is the FTSE All-Share Real 
Estate Investment Trusts Index, to re*ect the Company’s 
conversion into a REIT with e(ect from that date. These 
indices have been chosen by the Committee as they are 
considered the most appropriate benchmarks against 
which to assess the relative performance of the Company 
for this purpose. The graph is based on underlying data 
provided by Thomson Reuters Datastream.
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The auditor has audited the information contained in the following pages of this report.

Aggregate Directors’ remuneration
 2012 2011 
 £’000 £’000

Emoluments 1,888 1,522

Money purchase pension contributions 159 110

Total 2,047 1,632

Directors’ emoluments
   Performance  
 Basic Car related Bene)ts  2012 2011 
 salary allowance bonus in kind Fees Total Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Executive Directors       

Ian Watson 375 38 311 9 - 733 623

Morgan Jones 375 38 311 5 - 729 619

Richard Lowes 244 24 152 6 - 426 280

       

Non-Executive Directors       

James Hambro - - - - 83 83 75

Stephen Gee - - - - 47 47 45

Richard Mully - - - - 40 40 40      

Richard Cotton - - - - 46 46 40

Humphrey Price - - - - 40 40 40

Total 994 100 774 20 256 2,144 1,762

Bene)ts in kind represent the deemed monetary value of the health care and life insurance provided by the Group.  
The fees of Stephen Gee were paid to Wallace Clifton Limited.

Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan 
The Committee reviewed the liability of the Group to payments which would fall due under the three-year long-term 
incentive plan which ended on 31 December 2012 and the liability was determined to be nil (2011: £nil). 

Implementation Report

REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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Directors’ pension entitlements
Three Directors are members of money purchase pension schemes. The Group made contributions of £60,000 (2011: 
£48,000) to the self-administered pension fund of Morgan Jones, contributions of £60,000 (2011: £48,000) to the self-
administered pension fund of Ian Watson and contributions of £39,000 (2011: £14,000) to the self-administered fund 
pension fund of Richard Lowes.

Performance Share Plan
Awards under the Performance Share Plan are subject to performance conditions measured over the relevant 
performance periods ending on the earliest exercise date as set out below

  Number of ordinary 
 Award date shares awarded Earliest exercise date Expiry date

Morgan Jones 9 July 2012 388,789 11 June 2014 9 July 2022

Morgan Jones 9 July 2012 388,789 11 June 2015 9 July 2022

Ian Watson 9 July 2012 388,789 11 June 2014 9 July 2022

Ian Watson 9 July 2012 388,789 11 June 2015 9 July 2022

Richard Lowes 9 July 2012 252,713 11 June 2014 9 July 2022

Richard Lowes 9 July 2012 252,713 11 June 2015 9 July 2022

The value of each award was calculated with reference to the average mid market price of an ordinary share of the 
Company over )ve consecutive dealing days immediately preceding the award date, being 72.34 pence. 

Directors’ share options
The 2005 Share Option Scheme is open to certain senior employees of the Group excluding the Joint Chief Executives. 
In the case of options granted within three months of admission of shares to trading on AIM, options are exercisable 
at the price at which shares were placed in connection with the *oat, being £1 per share. All options granted after this 
date are exercisable at a price equal to the average quoted market price of the ordinary shares of the Company on the 
date of grant. The options have a three year vesting period that is not subject to performance conditions. If the options 
remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the date of grant, the options expire. Options are normally forfeited 
if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest. In accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’ the fair 
value of equity-settled share-based payments to employees is determined at the date of grant and is expensed on a 
straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Group’s estimate of options that will eventually vest. Fair value 
is calculated using a Binomial pricing model.



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2012  95

REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares 
in the Company granted to or held by the Directors. No options were granted or exercised during the year. Details of 
options for Directors who served during the year are as follows:

  31 December 31 December Exercise price Date from which  
 Scheme 2011  2012  (p)  exercisable Expiry date

Richard Lowes 2005 300,000 300,000 93.8 03/01/2009 03/01/2016

Richard Lowes 2005 300,000 300,000 66.2 20/04/2012 20/04/2019

The market price of shares at 31 December 2012 was 80p. The highest and lowest market prices during the year were 
80.9p and 70p, respectively. 

Richard Cotton 
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

8 March 2013
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Financial Calendar

Ex-Dividend Date !$ April !"#(

Record Date !- April !"#(

Posting Dividend !# May !"#(

Dividend Payable !! May !"#(

Annual General Meeting #" June !"#(
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